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Directors’ Report 
 
To the Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the Thirtieth 
(30th) Directors Report of your Company along with the 
Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025.

Financial Performance

During the year ended March 31, 2025, your company 
earned a gross total income of Rs.12667.72 Lakhs which 
was up by 6% as compared to the previous year. The Profit 
after tax was is Rs. 2290.14 Lakhs which increased by 14% 
compared to the previous year. The last year was mixed 
for the stock market. While the first half was quite good, 
the second half saw significant profit booking which led 
to correction of around ten percent from its peak for the 
broader market which had an impact on the performance 
of your company. The benchmark indices BSE Sensex and 
NSE Nifty 50 recorded a yearly growth of about 5%. The 
performance of your company is in line with the overall 
market.  

The financial results are summarized below:

Particulars
2024-25
(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

2023-24
(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Total Income 12667.72 11963.84

Total Expenditure 9542.69 9231.72

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 3125.03 2732.12

Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 2290.14 2007.18

Total Comprehensive Income 2287.45 2007.17

Net Worth 12,158.75 11271.9

Book Value per Equity Share 199.75  185.72

Earnings per share 37.61 32.96

Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company are pleased to 
recommend a final dividend of Rs. 10.5 per equity share 
(105%) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The 
final dividend is subject to approval of members at the 
30th Annual General Meeting.

The total dividend for the year together with the interim 
dividends paid earlier [i.e. 1st interim dividend of Rs.4 per 
equity share (40%) and 2nd interim dividend of Rs. 4/- per 
equity share (40%) would be Rs 18.50/- per share (185%) 
for the financial year 2024-25.

Transfer to reserves

Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to 
the general reserve. An amount of Rs. 2290.14 lakhs are 
retained in the Profit & Loss Account.

Economic and Capital Market developments -	

The global economy has remained resilient, however, 
there have been downside risks from increasing intense 

geopolitical conflicts, creation of trade barriers, financial 
market volatility and increasing public debt. The threat 
of increase in tariff has created an uncertainty in world 
economic order.  Inflation has been moderating in major 
economies. In the midst of the global uncertainties, the 
World Bank has projected a steady growth rate of 6.7% 
in both FY 2025-26 and FY 2026-27 for Indian economy 
which underscores India’s resilience and growing 
significance among global and regional peers. 

Indian economy is on continues long term growth trajectory 
and the year 2024-25 was another year in that journey to 
achieve the vision of Viksit Bharat. The real gross domestic 
product (GDP) grew by 6.5% in financial year 2024-25 
led by a revival in private consumption and improvement 
in investment. High frequency indicators suggest that the 
domestic economic activity continues to be steady. The 
main components from the supply side like agriculture, 
manufacturing and services remain resilient. The above 
normal monsoon supported agricultural growth. The rural 
demand has been on an upswing while urban demand 
has been steady. Private consumption remained healthy 
with gradual rise in discretionary spending. Inflation has 
softened during the year prompting RBI to effect rate cuts 
in June 2025. 

For capital market, the last year has been marked by 
extreme volatility. The benchmark indices reached an all-
time high in September 2024, only to witness a sharp 
14 percent correction wiping out nearly all its gain from 
previous year. Domestic institutional investors have 
continued to provide stability. One of the silver lining has 
been the steady flows to Mutual Funds by retail investors. 
However foreign institutional investors have withdrawn 
about Rs.4 lakh Crores mainly due to global factors and 
elevated U.S. bond yields. The market corrections have 
made the valuations attractive and FII flows are expected 
to reverse into Indian market during the current year. The 
corrections have also created an opportunity for long 
term investors. The benign tax structures and incentives 
introduced in the Union Budget will help in attracting more 
savings in the capital market. 

The year also saw the market regulator SEBI taking several 
measures to safeguard the interest of small investors. 
The notable ones are the awareness created on the 
large amount of loses being made by retail investors in 
derivatives trading. The steps to restrict weekly settlements 
and the awareness measures has resulted in drop in 
derivatives volumes by more than 20 percent. This will 
help in channelizing retail money into more productive 
investment avenues. Another landmark measure was 
introduction of direct pay-out to investor’s account which 
will further boost investor’s confidence in the stock market 
transactions.   

Operations review

Your Company is in the business of Stock Broking and is 
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a member of BSE Limited (BSE) Cash, Equity Derivatives, 
National Stock Exchange (NSE), Cash, Equity Derivatives, 
Currency Derivatives and Multi Commodities Exchange 
(MCX) commodities segment. SSL started to act as Self 
Clearing Member in the Futures & Options segment 
/ Currency Derivatives segment w.e.f. April 22, 2024.  
Your company provides demat services as a Depository 
Participant (DP) of Central Depository Services India Limited 
(CDSL) and National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). 
Your company is also registered as Research Analyst (RA)
and Portfolio Management Services (PMS) with Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Stock Broking 
services are offered to both retail investors and institutional 
clients.

Digital initiatives 

Your Company has been working on developing a new 
mobile application with advanced features, processes, 
to provide attractive user interface and user experiences. 
The aim is to make the technology attractive to multi-
generational clients including the new entrants to capital 
market. 

SSL has also developed a complete online client on-
boarding solution for retail customers. It is in the process of 
developing an online solution for on-boarding authorized 
persons through digital mode. 

SSL is taking steps to increase the transaction through digital 
mode. During the year approximately 40% transactions by 
volume was conducted through digital platforms (Online & 
Mobile traded Clients).

SHARE CAPITAL:

Authorised Share capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on March 
31, 2025 is ` 20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crore only) 
divided into 1,80,00,000 Equity shares of `10 /- (Rupees 
ten only per share) and 20,00,000 Preference shares of 
`10 /- (Rupees ten only per share).

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

As on March 31, 2025, the issued, subscribed and paid-up 
Share Capital of the Company is `6,08,97,000/- (Rupees 
Six Crore Eight Lakh Ninety Seven Thousand only) divided 
into 60,89,703 Equity shares of  `10 /- (Rupees ten only 
per share) fully paid up.

During the year under review, there is no change in the 
share capital of the company.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies 

The Company does not have Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ 
Associate Companies.

Reporting of Fraud 

There was no instance of fraud reported during the year 
under review, which required the Statutory Auditors, Cost 
Auditor or Secretarial Auditor to report the same to the 
Audit Committee of the Company under Section 143(12) 
of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.

Change in the nature of business

There was no change in the nature of the business of the 
Company during the year under review.

Directors Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge, ability and belief and 
according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, your Directors make the following statements in 
terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
confirm that:

(a)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed and there 
are no material departures; 

(b)	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
your Company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit 
of the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c)	 proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 the annual accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis;

(e)	 proper internal financial controls were in place and 
such financial controls are adequate and operating 
effectively.

(f)	 systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws were in place and were adequate and 
operating effectively.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by the company. The internal audit in addition 
to ensuring compliance to policies, regulations, processes 
etc., also test and report adequacy of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial reporting/statements. 
The Board relied on the framework of internal financial 
controls and systems established and maintained by the 
Company, the work performed by the internal auditors, 
statutory auditors and secretarial auditors including 
internal financial controls and reviews performed by the 
management and relevant Board Committee’s. The Board 
is of the opinion that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

As on March 31, 2025, your Company had eight Directors 
including two Independent Directors and one Woman 
Director. The Independent Directors have given declaration 
that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down 
under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, Shri Prabhat Kumar Dubey 
had been appointed as the MD & CEO effective from August 
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01, 2024 as Shri Sanjay Pote resigned from his position as 
MD & CEO of the Company effective from close of business 
hours of July 31, 2024 on account of his repatriation to the 
parent company. 

Shri Atul Saxena, was appointed as an Additional Director 
and Non-Executive Chairman, not liable to retire by 
rotation by Board of directors effective from September 23, 
2024 based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee.

Shri Manoj Kumar Parida’s designation has been changed 
from Director and Non-Executive Chairman not liable to 
retire by rotation to director liable to retire by rotation 
effective from September 23, 2024.

Smt. Sarala Menon, Director will retire by rotation at the 
ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting and being eligible 
to offer herself for re-appointment. 

Shri G. Anantharaman ceased to be independent director 
w.e.f close of business hours on January 01, 2025 
consequent to completion of his second tenure. The Board 
places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable 
contributions made by Shri G. Anantharaman during his 
tenure as an Independent Director. Shri Girraj Prasad 
Garg was appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company by Board of directors effective from March 29, 
2025 based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee.

Smt. Swati Goyal resigned from her position as the 
Company Secretary effective from close of business hours 
on November 14, 2024, and Smt. Poonam Chhikara has 
been appointed as the Company Secretary effective from 
January 24, 2025, 

Shri Hemang Ladani resigned from his position as Chief 
financial officer effective from close of business hours on 
January 17, 2025 and Smt. Reshma Chalke has been 
appointed as the Chief Financial Officer effective from 
January 24, 2025.

Shri Prabhat Kumar Dubey, MD & CEO, Smt. Poonam 
Chhikara, Company Secretary and Smt. Reshma Chalke, 
Chief Financial Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel 
of your Company as on July 24, 2025.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During the year, seven (7) Board Meetings were convened 
and held. The intervening gaps between the meetings was 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013. The details of meetings of the Board and various 
Committees of the Board held during the financial year 
2024-25 forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.

Annual Evaluation of Performance of the Board

The Board of Directors had carried out an annual evaluation 
of its own performance, Board committees and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The performance of the Board was evaluated 
by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors 
on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and 

structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information 
and functioning, etc.

The responses were sought from Directors through 
questionnaires on various aspects of the Board’s 
functioning in close alignment with the stated objectives of 
the Company. On the basis of the response received from 
the Directors, the Board carried out an annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, Directors individually 
as well as the evaluation of the working of the regular 
Committees of Board. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee undertook an evaluation of each Director’s 
performance.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

In terms of the requirements under the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Company has put in place a policy on 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees. 

The said Policy is guided by the set of principles and 
objectives as particularly envisaged under Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy outlines attributes 
and criteria to be taken into account while appointing 
a Director, which includes academic and professional 
qualifications, experience, skill sets, etc. Appointment 
of Directors are considered and recommended by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee in the first 
instance, and thereafter approved by the Board and 
Shareholders.

The Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors comprises 
sitting fees for attending the meetings of Board/ Committees 
of the Board. None of the Directors were entitled to Stock 
Options.

The MD & CEO is entitled to fixed pay as well as variable 
pay linked to performance. The payment of remuneration 
to the MD & CEO is subject to approval by Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee, Board and Shareholders. 

The NRC Policy of the Company is placed on the website 
of your Company at www.stockholdingservices.com.The 
details of composition and meetings of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee are included in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

Audit Committee

The details pertaining to the Composition and meetings of 
Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance 
report which forms part of this report.

Auditors

The Holding Company i.e., Stock Holding Corporation 
of India Limited is a Government Company as per the 
provisions of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Being a subsidiary of a Government Company, your 
Company is also a Government Company. 

The Office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
(CAG) vide its letter dated September 22, 2024 had 
appointed M/s. A Bafna & Co, Chartered Accountants as 
Statutory Auditors under section 139 of the Companies 
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Act, 2013 for the financial year 2024-25.

Your Company has an elaborate internal audit system. 
Internal Audit of the functions and activities of the Company 
is being carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered 
Accountants.

The statutory auditor’s report does not contain any 
qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks or 
disclaimer.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) 
Audit

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG), 
vide letter dated July 07, 2025, informed that C&AG have 
decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of financial 
statements of your Company for the year ended March 
31, 2025 under section 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013. The copy of the same is placed next to the Statutory 
Auditors’ Report forming part of the financial statements.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantee and Investments

Your Company has not given any loans, guarantees and 
investments within the purview of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Related Party Transactions

All the Related Party Transactions (RPTs) that were entered 
into during the financial year were on arms’ length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of business and were in 
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as well as the Policy on Related Party Transaction 
adopted by the Company. As prescribed under section 
177(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, RPTs are placed before 
the Audit Committee. None of the transactions with related 
parties falls under the scope of section 188(1) of the Act.

All the RPTs have been approved by the Audit Committee of 
the Board on the strength of Management representation 
that they are in the ordinary course of business at arm’s 
length price. 

The Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
Act, (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure A to 
this Report.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunal:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators/ courts/tribunal which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its operations in the 
future.

Risk Management

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral part 
of business and is committed to managing the risk in a 
proactive and efficient manner. The Company periodically 
assesses risk in the internal and external environment. The 
Risk Management Committee inter-alia reviews various 
risks your Company is exposed to and considers the 
mitigants suggested by the business heads/ departmental 

heads. The details of Risk Management Committee are 
included in Corporate Governance Report which forms part 
of this report. The Company is committed to managing 
the risk by continuously upgrading its Software features, 
automation and elimination of manual intervention.  

Committee on Prevention of Sexual Harassment

Your Company has constituted an Anti-Sexual Harassment 
Committee as required under “Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.” The Committee includes an external 
Independent Member. The disclosures required to be 
made under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 are given 
below:-

Number of complaints of sexual 
harassment received in the 
financial year 2024-2025

NIL

Number of complaints disposed-
off during the financial year 
2024-2025

Nil

Number of cases pending for 
more than ninety days

NIL

Number of workshops or 
awareness programs against 
sexual harassment carried out

2

Nature of action taken by the 
employer

NIL

Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report 
trading

The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Prohibition of 
Insider Trading Regulations, 2015] (Regulations) inter alia 
provides that market intermediary registered with SEBI is 
mandatorily required to formulate a code of conduct to 
regulate, monitor and report trading by its employees. 
Your Company being a SEBI registered intermediary has 
formulated a code of conduct to regulate monitor and 
report trading by its employees / Directors.

Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 
92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual 
Return of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2025, can be accessed at  https://stockholdingservices.
com/about/financial-report 

Corporate Governance

Your Company is not a listed entity. Nevertheless, it 
endeavors to comply with Corporate Governance norms.  
A report thereof is annexed at Annexure B.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Stockholding Services Limited (SSL) believes that business 
and corporate Social responsibility (CSR) go hand in hand. 
The CSR activities of SSL are carried out in line with the CSR 
policy of your company. 

https://stockholdingservices.com/about/financial-report 
https://stockholdingservices.com/about/financial-report 
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The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) policy of our Company and the initiatives undertaken 
on CSR during the year are set out in the Annexure C 
of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The 
CSR policy is also available on the website of the Company 
at www.stockholdingservices.com

The details of composition & meetings of the Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee are included in the 
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this 
report.

Vigil Mechanism

The Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its SEBI 
Stock Brokers (Amendment) Regulations, 2024 mandates 
every Stock Broker to have a Whistle Blower Policy in place 
as an institutional mechanism for prevention and detection 
of fraud or market abuse. Your Company has a Code of 
Conduct for its Directors and employees. Your Company 
vigil mechanism allows the Directors and employees to 
raise their genuine concerns about unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of its code of conduct. 
The policy provides for direct access in exceptional cases 
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Your Company 
encourages the Whistle Blower to raise genuine concerns 
and provides for adequate safeguards against victimization 
of whistle blower who avails such mechanism. The policy 
can be accessed on your Company’s website at www.
stockholdingservices.com.

Particulars of Employees 

None of the employees of your Company were in receipt 
of remuneration in excess of the limits as laid down under 
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Human wealth Development and Training

Your company is committed to creating a healthy, secure 
and employee friendly organizational culture which 
encourages its employees to develop their skills, push their 
limits for learning new things. SSL nurtures the talent and 
potential of its employees by nominating them to various 
training and development programs to hone their talent 
and skill sets. In order to foster community spirit and 
inclusivity. Programs, competitions and celebration are 
organized.  

The employees are encouraged to acquire the necessary 
regulatory and compliance certifications conducted by 
NISM and program conducted by SEBI, NSE, BSE, MCX, 
etc. which are relevant to the SSL’s business. SSL recognizes 
training and development as a crucial part of the talent 
development and various programs were conducted during 
the year, both through physical and virtual platforms. 

SSL participated to various Government of India initiatives 
by observing Vigilance Awareness Week with the theme 
“Culture of Integrity for Nation’s Prosperity”, 

SSL employees participated in an initiative through taking 

part in contests arranged like writing essays, slogans and 
innovative ideas from employees and their families in 
English, Hindi and Marathi.

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the 
Act. Accordingly, no disclosure or reporting is required in 
respect of details relating to deposits.

Dematerialization/Issue of equity shares

The equity shares of the Company are admitted with 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) ISIN  No. 
“INE04R301012”. As on date, 57,59,703 (94.6%) equity 
shares are held in demat mode and 3,30,000(5.4%) equity 
shares are held in physical form.

Your company has not issued any equity shares with 
differential right as to dividend, voting or otherwise and 
neither issued shares (including sweat equity shares) to 
employees of the company under any scheme.

Secretarial Auditors 

Your company does not fall under the criteria as per Section 
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the secretarial 
audit is not mandatory to the company. However, to follow 
best Corporate Governance practice, your company has 
appointed M/s D A Kamath & Co, Company Secretaries 
LLP to carry out an audit of its Secretarial activities. There 
are no qualifications, observations or adverse remarks in 
the said report. 

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Conservation of energy & technology absorption

Your Company does not carry any manufacturing activities. 
However, it has taken steps towards conservation of energy 
and continues to use latest technologies for improving the 
productivity and quality of its services.  The company uses 
energy efficient LED lights equipped with latest technology 
having features of lower power usage and improved 
performance. The Company is using energy efficient VRF/
VRV system of air conditioning.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year 
under review:

Foreign Exchange earnings - 	 Nil

Foreign Exchange outgo – 	 Nil

Details of application made or any proceeding 
pending under the insolvency and bankruptcy code, 
2016 during the year along with their status as at the 
end of the financial year

http://www.stockholdingservices.com
http://www.stockholdingservices.com
http://www.stockholdingservices.com
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During the year under review, the Company has not made any application and there is no pending proceeding under 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the 
valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the reasons thereof

During the year under review, the Company has not taken any loan from any bank or Financial Institution nor the 
Company has made any one-time settlement with any Banks or Financial Institutions.

Compliance of Provisions of Maternity Benefit Act 1961

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act 1961.
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Annexure A

FORM AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act, and Rule 8(2) of the  
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred 
to in Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: None

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any Not Applicable

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions Not Applicable

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board Not Applicable

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed Not Applicable

(i) Amount paid as advances, if any
Date on which special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso 
to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

Not Applicable

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: None

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Not Applicable

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements of transactions including the value, if any Not Applicable

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any Not Applicable

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any   Not Applicable

                                                                            For and on behalf of the
                                                                            Board of Directors

	

              Atul Saxena
                                                                                     Non-Executive Chairman

Place: Mumbai

Date:  July 24, 2025                      
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Annexure B

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Forming part of Directors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025)

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance  

The Company is not a listed entity. Nevertheless, it endeavors to comply with Corporate Governance norms as specified 
under SEBI Listing and Disclosure Regulation 2015. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to follow 
fair, ethical and transparent governance practices so as to achieve greater efficiency and effectiveness throughout the 
organization.

Your Company believes that Corporate Governance is a set of guidelines to help fulfill its responsibilities to all its 
stakeholders. It reflects the Company’s culture, policies, relationship with stakeholders, commitment to values and ethical 
business conduct

Board of Directors

The Board consists of eight directors, including two Independent Directors as on July 24, 2025. 

Shri Prabhat Kumar Dubey had been appointed as the MD & CEO effective from August 01, 2024 as Shri Sanjay Pote 
resigned from his position as MD & CEO of the Company effective from close of business hours of July 31, 2024 on 
account of his repatriation to the parent company.

Shri Atul Saxena, was appointed as an Additional Director and Non-Executive Chairman, not liable to retire by rotation by 
Board of directors effective from September 23, 2024 based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.

Shri Manoj Kumar Parida designation has been changed from Director and Non-Executive Chairman not liable to retire 
by rotation to director liable to retire by rotation effective from September 23, 2024.

Smt. Sarala Menon, Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing 30th Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer 
herself for re-appointment. 

The details of Directorships held by the Directors as on July 24, 2025 in other companies are as follows:

Shri Atul Saxena

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited Director  
MD & CEO

2 StockHolding Document Management Services Limited Additional Director

3 StockHolding Securities IFSC Limited Additional Director

4 IFCI Financial Services Limited Nominee Director

5 Shiga Energy Private Limited Nominee Director

Shri Manoj Kumar Parida

Sr. No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 IFIN SECURITIES FINANCE LIMITED Nominee Director

2 IIDL Realtors Private Limited Director

3 Stockholding Securities IFSC limited Additional Director

Shri D. C. Jain

Sr. No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 Famy Finance Private Limited Director

2 Wonder Home Finance Limited Director

3 Brick Eagle Affordable Housing Finance Limited Director

4 IRM Private Limited Director

5 IRM Energy Limited Director

6 Ratnaafin Capital Pvt. Ltd Independent director

Shri Girraj Prasad Garg

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

-- - -
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Shri Prabhat Kumar Dubey

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

-- -- --

Shri Amit Dassi

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

-- -- --

Smt Sarala Menon

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

-- - -

Shri Chirag Sapra

Sr.No Name of company/Institution Nature of interest

1 IFIN Credit Limited Director

Details of the Board Meeting and Attendance

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, 7 (Seven) meetings of Board of Directors were held.

Details of Board Meetings held during 2024-2025 are as follows:  

S. No. Date of the Board Meeting
Total number of Directors 

on the date of the meeting
No. of Directors 

attended
% of Attendance

1 April 12, 2024 7 7 100

2 July 23, 2024 7 7 100

3 October 17, 2024 8 8 100

4 October 22, 2024 8 8 100

5 January 24, 2025 7 7 100

6 March 10, 2025 7 6 85.71

7 March 28, 2025 7 7 100

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting during the financial year 2024-25:

S. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

April 
12, 

2024

July 
23, 

2024

October 
17, 2024

October 
22, 

2024

January 
24, 2025

March 
10, 

2025

March 
28, 

2025

Attendance 
at the AGM 

held on 
September 
18, 2024

1 Shri Atul Saxena 
(Appointed w.e.f. 
September 23, 2024)

NA NA √ √ √ √ √ NA

2
Shri Manoj Kumar 
Parida 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

3 Shri Sanjay Pote √ √ NA NA NA NA NA NA

4 Smt. Sarala Menon √ √ √ √ √ LoA √ √

5 Shri D. C. Jain √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

6 Shri. Amit Dassi √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

7
Shri. G. 
Anantharaman

√ √ √ √ NA NA NA √

8 Shri Chirag Sapra √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √

9 Shri Prabhat Kumar 
Dubey NA NA √ √ √ √ √ √

10 Shri Girraj Prasad 
Garg NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

√ = Attended	 LoA=Leave of Absence NA= Not Applicable
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Details of Audit Committee and Attendance

The accounts of your Company are audited every quarter and the audited quarterly and annual financial statements are 
placed before the Audit Committee for their consideration, review and recommendations before submission to the Board 
for approval. 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Board inter alia includes the terms referred to under Section 177 
(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

As on March 31, 2025, the Audit Committee comprised of two members viz.  Shri D. C. Jain, and Shri Amit Dassi 
as members. Shri G. Anantharaman ceased to be independent director w.e.f. close of business hours on 1st January, 
2025 consequent to completion of his second tenure. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee 
meetings during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category
Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting

April 12, 
2024

July 23, 
2024

October 
17, 2024

January 
24, 2025

March 
10, 2025

1 Shri G Anantharaman Independent Director √ √ √ NA NA

2 Shri D. C. Jain Independent Director √ √ √ √ √

3 Shri Amit Dassi Director √ √ √       √       √

√ = Attended NA= Not Applicable

Details of Risk Committee 

The Risk Management Committee inter-alia review’s various risks your Company is exposed to/ risk associated with any 
new activities and considers the mitigants suggested by the business heads/ departmental heads. 

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee comprised of two directors viz., Smt. Sarala Menon and Shri Amit Dassi as 
members. Shri G. Anantharaman ceased to be independent director w.e.f. close of business hours on January 01, 2025 
consequent to completion of his second tenure. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Risk Management 
Committee meetings the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category

Attendance at the Risk Management Committee 
Meeting

July 23, 2024 March 10, 2025 March 28, 2025

1 Shri G Anantharaman Independent 
Director

√ NA NA

2 Shri Amit Dassi Director √ √ √

3 Smt. Sarala Menon Director √ LoA √

√ = Attended LoA=Leave of Absence NA= Not Applicable

Details of Nomination Remuneration Committee (NRC) and Attendance

Your Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).  As required under Section 178 
(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the NRC has inter alia formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of Directors, recommend the appointment of persons who may be appointed as Directors, 
Key Managerial and Senior Management position (one level below the MD & CEO / WTD) in accordance with the criteria 
laid down in this policy, recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to KMP, Senior Management Personnel and 
other employees and recommend to the Board remuneration, if any, payable to the Directors, etc.

As on March 31, 2025, the Committee comprised of two directors viz., Shri D. C. Jain and Smt. Sarala Menon as members. 
Shri G. Anantharaman ceased to be independent director w.e.f. close of business hours on January 01, 2025 consequent 
to completion of his second tenure. The details of attendance of the Directors at the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee meetings during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category

Attendance at the  Nomination Remuneration 
Committee Meeting

Apr 12, 
2024

July 23, 
2024

October 17, 
2024

January 24, 
2025

1 Shri G Anantharaman Independent Director √ √ √ NA

2 Shri D. C. Jain Independent Director √ √ √ √

3 Smt Sarala Menon Director √ √ √ √

√ = Attended	 NA= Not Applicable
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Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and Attendance

The CSR policy of your Company has been prepared pursuant to Section 135 of the Act, CSR Rules, any circulars / 
notifications issued by the MCA. The role of CSR Committee includes:

	 Formulating and recommending to the Board of Directors the CSR policy and indicating activities to be undertaken.

	 Recommending the amount of expenditure for the CSR activities.

	 Monitoring CSR activities from time to time. 

As on March 31, 2025, the CSR Committee comprised of Shri D.C. Jain (Chairman), Shri Amit Dassi and Smt. Sarala 
Menon (Director) as members.

The CSR Committee met once during the year. The detail of attendance of the Directors at the CSR Committee meeting 
is as under:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Category
Attendance

October 17, 2024
1 Shri D. C. Jain Indpendent Director √
2 Smt. Sarala Menon Director √
3 Shri Amit Dassi Director √

√ = Attended.	

General Meetings

The details of Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company held in the past 
three years are as under:

Meeting Date Venue

27th Annual General Meeting    September 16, 2022
Through Video conferencing organized by the 
company.

15th Extraordinary General Meeting July 08, 2022

16th Extraordinary General Meeting March 10, 2023

28th Annual General Meeting    September 15, 2023 Through Video conferencing organized by the 
company29th Annual General Meeting    September 18, 2024

Shareholding Pattern

There were no transactions of your Company of material nature with its Directors, KMP or their relatives that may have 
potential conflict with the interest of your Company at large.

Disclosures

There were no transactions of your Company of material nature with its Directors, KMP or their relatives that may have 
potential conflict with the interest of your Company at large.

Dividend history

Dividend history of last five years

S.No. Financial Year Rate of Dividend (Rs)(per equity share) Date of Declaration (AGM)

1 2019-20 4.00 September 16, 2020

    2 2020-21 16.00 September 17, 2021

    3 2021-22 17.50 September 16, 2022

    4 2022-23 8.00 September 15, 2023

    5 2023-24 17.50 September 18, 2024

Shareholder Information-

a)	 Annual General Meeting
	 Through Video conferencing organized by the company.

b)	 Date of Book closure/record date
	 September 06, 2025                

c)	 Dividend payment date	
	 Dividend after September 12, 2025 but within the statutory time limit.	

d)	 Listing on Stock Exchange
	 The Company’s shares are not listed in any stock exchange.
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e)	 Distribution of shareholdings as on March 31, 2025
	 The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited (StockHolding). 

f)	 Address of correspondence
       The Company Secretary
       Stockholding Services Limited
       P-51, T.T.C, Industrial Area
       MIDC, Mahape, 
 	 Navi Mumbai 400 710  	
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Annexure C

	 Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 
(Forming part of Directors’ Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025)

1.	 A brief outline of your Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programmes proposed 
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

Your Company strongly believes that Business & Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) go hand-in-hand.  

The Board of your Company after taking into account the recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee of the Board has approved the CSR policy. The CSR policy is also displayed on the website 
https://stockholdingservices.com/policy/csr_policy . The CSR activities of your Company are towards the under 
mentioned areas.

	 Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care, sanitation, etc.;

	 Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills, etc.;

	 Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance including contribution to the clean Ganga fund set 
up by the Central Govt. for rejuvenation of river Ganga, etc.; 

	 Any other area under Schedule VII of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

All the CSR activities of your Company are predominantly being undertaken through its Holding Company 
StockHolding and SHCIL Foundation Trust, a public charitable trust registered under Section 12 (A) of the Income 
Tax Act, 1961.  The Trust carries out certain activities directly and also indirectly by way of donations to credible 
NGOs which are eligible to issue certificate under Section 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

2.	 Composition of the CSR Committee

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature 
of Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
held during the year

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 
during the year

1 Shri D. C Jain Independent Director, 
Chairman

1 1

2 Shri Amit Dassi Director 1 1

3 Smt. Sarala Menon Director 1 1

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The Board after taking into account the recommendations of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 
of the Board has approved the CSR policy. The Composition of the CSR committee, CSR policy and the CSR 
projects are also displayed on the website https://stockholdingservices.com/about/csr-projects-2024

4.	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of 
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the 
report).

Not applicable since the CSR obligation is less than Rs.10 crore 

5.	 Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any.

Sl. No. Financial year Amount available for 
set-off from preceding 
financial years (in Rs)

Amount required to be 
set- off for the financial 

year, if any (in Rs)

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

https://stockholdingservices.com/policy/csr_policy
https://stockholdingservices.com/about/csr-projects-2024
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6.	 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR 
as per 135(5)

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR as per 
135(5) is Rs. 25,11,82,575/-   

7.	 (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

Two percent of average net profit of the Corporation as per section 135 (5) is Rs. 50,23,652/-

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years.

Nil

(c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any.

Nil

(d)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b – 7c).

	 The total CSR obligation for the financial year is Rs. 50,30,000/- (considering rounding off)

8.	 Details of CSR spent/unspent for the financial year:

a.	 Total amount spent for the financial year

Total amount 
spent for the 
financial year 

(in Rs)

Amount unspent (in Rs)

Total amount transferred to 
unspent CSR account as per 

section 135 (6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule vii as per second proviso to 

section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the
Fund

Amount Date of 
transfer

50,30,000 /- Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

b.	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

NIL

c.	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

S.No Name of the 
Project

Item from the list of 
activities in Schedule VII 
to the Ac

Local 
Area

Location of the project Amount allo-
cated for the 

project (in Rs.)

Amount spent 
on the projects 

(In Rs.)

Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account 
for the project as per 
Section 135(6) (in Rs.)

Cumulative ex-
penditure upto the 
reporting period

(in Rs.)

Mode of 
Implementa-
tion - Direct 

(Yes/No).

Mode of  
implementation

State District Name CSR registra-
tion Number

1 Project -YUVA 
Parivartan 
NGO Kherwadi 
Social Welfare 
Association 
(KSWA)
(New Project)

Educational 
Promoting education, 
including special education 
and employment enhancing 
vocational skills especially 
among children, women, 
elderly and the differently 
abled and livelihood 
enhancement Projects.

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 10,00,000/- 10,00,000/- Nil 10,00,000/- No Through 
SHCIL 
Foundation

CSR00004627

2 Bastar Dharma 
Kshema Samiti 
(BDKS)

Community Development 
It aims to promote 
sustainable development, 
rights, equality, economic 
opportunity and social 
justice by empowering 
people within their 
communities. 

NO Chhattisgarh Jagdalpur 10,00,000/- 10,00,000/- Nil 10,00,000/- NO Through 
SHCIL 
Foundation

CSR00004627

3 Patambda College Education Promoting 
education, including special 
education and employment 
enhancing vocational 
skills especially among 
children, women, elderly 
and the differently able and 
livelihood enhancement
Projects.

NO Jharkhand Jamshedpur, 
Jala,

8,00,000/- 8,00,000/- Nil 8,00,000/- NO Through 
SHCIL 
Foundation

CSR00004627

4 LittleMore Medical-Eradicating hunger, 
poverty and malnutrition, 
promoting preventive 
health care and sanitation 
and making available safe 
drinking water.

Yes Maharashtra Parel 7,00,000/- 7,00,000/- Nil 7,00,000/- NO Through 
SHCIL 
Foundation

CSR00004627

5 Hurt Foundation Education Promoting 
education, including special 
education and employment 
enhancing vocational 
skills especially among 
children, women, elderly 
and the differently able and 
livelihood enhancement
Projects.

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 5,30,000/- 5,30,000/- Nil 5,30,000/- NO Through 
SHCIL 
Foundation

CSR00004627
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
S.No Name of the 

Project
Item from the list of 
activities in Schedule VII 
to the Ac

Local 
Area

Location of the project Amount allo-
cated for the 

project (in Rs.)

Amount spent 
on the projects 

(In Rs.)

Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account 
for the project as per 
Section 135(6) (in Rs.)

Cumulative ex-
penditure upto the 
reporting period

(in Rs.)

Mode of 
Implementa-
tion - Direct 

(Yes/No).

Mode of  
implementation

State District Name CSR registra-
tion Number

6 Samudaik Kalyan 
Evam Vikas 
Sansthan (SKEVS)
(New  project)

Education Promoting 
education, including special 
education and employment 
enhancing vocational 
skills especially among 
children, women, elderly 
and the differently able and 
livelihood enhancement
Projects.

NO Uttar Pradesh Gorakhpur 5,00,000/- 5,00,000/- Nil 5,00,000/- Yes Through 
SHCIL 

Foundation

CSR00004627

7 Doing my bit 
foundation 

Under Schedule VII (iv) of 
CSR activities, this comes 
under animal welfare.

Yes Mahrashtra Dadar, Mumbai 5,00,000/- 5,00,000/- Nil 5,00,000/- NO Through 
SHCIL 

Foundation

CSR00004627

d.	 Amount spent in Administrative overheads: -
NIL amount from CSR funds

e.	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
Not applicable since the CSR obligation is less than Rs.10 crore.

f.	 Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e)
Rs 50,30,000/-

g.	 Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. no. Particulars Amount  (in Rs)

i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5) 50,23,652

ii. Total amount spent for the financial year 50,30,000

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [ii – i] 6348

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any

Nil

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [iii-iv] Nil

9.	 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial 

Year.

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs.).

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial 

years. (in Rs.)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in Rs).

Date of 
transfer.

1. Not 
applicable

Not applicable Not 
applicable

Not 
applicable

Not 
applicable

Not 
applicable

Not applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the     preceding financial 
year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. 
No.

Project ID. Name of 
the Project.

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 

commenced.

Project 
duration.

Total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 

project (in 
Rs.).

Amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs).

Cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 

Year. (in Rs.)

Status 
of the 

project - 
Completed 
/Ongoing.

1 Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable

10.	 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

Nil

b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital

Nil
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c)	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc.

Not applicable.

d)	 Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
location of the capital asset).

Not applicable.

11.	Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5).

N.A

For the financial year 2024-25, the company has spent two per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years.

                                                                                                    Atul Saxena 
                                                                                        Non Executive Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date:  July 24, 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To 
The Members of 
StockHolding Services Limited 
(Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of 
StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly known as 
SHCIL Services Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the statement 
of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 
Accounting Standards(“the IND-AS”) of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit, its cash 
flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that 
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of Standalone financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those SAs are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significant in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters.

Key Audit Matter (KAM) Auditor’s response 
1.	 Accuracy and Completeness of Revenue in 

respect of Brokerage Income

Brokerage Income is received from numerous clients 
through Contract Notes. Accounting of the same is 
done through a software based on master data of each 
client and transactions of respective client on exchange 
accounts for Brokerage Income on daily basis.

2.	  IT Systems and controls
The financial accounting and reporting systems of the 
Company are fundamentally reliant on IT systems and 
IT controls to process significant transaction volumes.
Automated accounting procedures and IT environment 
controls, which include IT governance, general IT 
controls over program development and changes, 
access to program and data and IT operations, are 
required to be designed and to operate effectively to 
ensure accurate financial reporting. 
Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and complexity 
of the IT environment, the assessment of the general 
IT controls and the application controls specific to the 
accounting and preparation of the financial information 
is considered to be a key audit matter.

1. Principal Audit Procedures: Our Audit Approach was 
a combination of test of Internal control and substantive 
procedures which are as follows: 
•	 Evaluated the design of Internal controls relating exchange 

files being uploaded in accounting Software.
•	 Selected sample of exchange files and verified the same 

with accounting records. 
•	 Selected sample clients and verified percentage of 

brokerage in system with brokerage slab as per KYC.
•	 Verified Contract Notes on sample basis for evaluating 

calculation of brokerage.
Conclusion Our Procedure did not Identify any material 
exceptions.

2. We performed the following procedures on the IT 
infrastructure and applications relevant to financial reporting:

•	 We have checked the design and operating effectiveness 
of IT access controls over the information systems that are 
important to financial reporting and various interfaces, 
configuration and other identified application controls.

•	 We have checked the general IT controls 
•	 We have gone through various control aspects including 

reports of external agencies on system controls.
Conclusion Our Procedure did not Identify any material 
exceptions.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements & 
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors 
are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 
Company’s annual report, but does not include the 
standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon. These reports are expected to be made available 
to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. Since these reports are 
expected to be made available to us after the date of this 
audit report hence currently, we have nothing to report in 
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management & those charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the 
preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, state 
of affairs, profit (including other comprehensive income), 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the  Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management and Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions 
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matter communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone financials 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure 
A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2	 We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) 
of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books of 
records of the company as we considered appropriate 
and accordingly to the information and explanation 
given to us in “Annexure B” on the directions issued by 
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.  

3	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 

that: 

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books except 
non maintenance of Audit Trail (Edit Log) till 9th April 
2024 in one of the accounting software of the company 
namely Tally Prime in which books of accounts are 
maintained, other than above the facility of Audit Trail 
(Edit Logs) was operating throughout the year.

c)	 The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; 

	 We are informed that provisions of section 197 read 
with schedule V of the Act, related to managerial 
remuneration are not applicable to the company, 
being a Government company, in terms of Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs notification number G.S.R. 463(E) 
dated 5th June 2015

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 32 to the financial 
statements;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 
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iv.	 a) 	 The management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in 
any other person(s) or entities, including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. (Refer Note No. 47(J))

	 b) 	 The management has represented, that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been received by the company 
from any person(s) or entities, including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer Note 
No. 47(J))

	 c)	 Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 
(e) as provided under (a) and (b) above 
contain any material misstatement.

v.	 The dividend declared or paid during the year by 
the company is in compliance with Section 123 of 
the Act.

vi.	 Implementation of Audit Trail for maintenance 
of Books of Accounts using software which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (Edit Logs) facility as 
per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the under Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014

	 The company is mainly using software for 
maintaining its books of accounts, the status of 
implementation of Audit Trail is as under: -

Core Business 
Software :

Company has implemented the feature 
of recording audit trail facility in its core 
business software and same has operated 
throughout the year for all transactions 
recorded in that software. Further, during 
the course of our audit we did not come 
across any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with & the audit trail 
has been preserved by the company as 
per the statutory requirements for record 
retention.

Tally Prime : This software is used for maintaining 
books of accounts of the company, the 
company has not implemented Audit 
Trail (Edit Logs) facility from April 1, 2024 
to April 9, 2024 in this software except 
for above, the facility of Audit Trail (Edit 
Logs) was operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in 
the software. Further, during the course 
of our audit we did not come across 
any instance of audit trail feature being 
tampered with & the audit trail has 
been preserved by the company as per 
the statutory requirements for record 
retention except for the period till April 
9, 2024.

For A Bafna & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003660C

Vivek Gupta
Partner 
Membership No. 400543

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23/04/2025
UDIN : 25400543BMLIFB5076
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ sectionof our report to the 
Members of StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly known as SHCIL Services Limited) of even date for the year ended 
31st March 2025.

i.	 In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment

(B) 	 The company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

b)	 The Company has a program of physical 
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so 
to cover all the assets every year. Pursuant to the 
program, Property, Plant and Equipment were 
physically verified by the Management during 
the year. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

c)	 The company does not own any immovable 
property hence the question of title deed in its 
name does not arises.

d)	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during 
the year.

e)	 No proceedings have been initiated during the 
year or are pending against the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there 
under.

ii.	 a)   The Company does not have any inventory and 
hence reporting under clause3(ii)(a) of the order 
is not applicable.

 	 b)   There is no working capital limit or loan taken by 
company on basis of security of current assets.

iii) 	 a) 	 Accordingto the information and explanations 
given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not made investments in, provided any guarantee 
or security or granted any loans or advances in 
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or any other parties except investment in equity 
shares of Life Insurance Corporation 

b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that 
the terms and conditions of the investments 
made, security provided and grant of loans are, 
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

c)	 In respect of loans and advances in the nature of 
loans, Company has not provided any loans and 
advances. Hence, reporting under clause 3(c) (d) 
(e) (f) of the order is not applicable.

iv)   	The Company has not provided any investment 
and loans or given any guarantees or provided any 
securities during the year as per the provision of 
Section 185 and 186. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v)	 The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting 
under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi)	 The maintenance of cost records has not been 
specified by the Central Government under sub- 
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
for the business activities carried out by the Company. 
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

vii)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a.	 Based upon the audit procedures performed 
and the information & explanations given by 
the management, the Company has been 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 
There were no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of 
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025, for 
a period of more than six months from the date 
they become payable. 
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b.	 There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) above which have not been deposited 
as on March 31, 2025, on account of disputes 
except the below mentioned dues: 

Name of 
Statue

Nature of 
Dues

Amount 
Involved        
(in Lakhs)

Period to 
Which the 
amount 
relates 

(Financial 
Year)

Forum 
where 

dispute is 
pending

Income 
Tax 
Act,1961

Tax 
Deducted 
at source

2.46 FY 2022-23 Response 
has been 
submitted 

on TRACES 
portal

viii)	 There were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961).

ix)	 The company has not taken loans or borrowings 
hence reporting under clause (ix) of the order is not 
applicable

x)	 a) 	 The Company has not raised money(s) by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

b) 	 During the year the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
and hence reporting under clause (x) of CARO 
2020 is not applicable to the Company.

xi)	 (a)  No fraud by the Company and no material fraud 
on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year.

(b)	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 
of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and up to the date 
of this report.

(c)	 As represented to us by the management, there 
are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year.

xii)	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 
reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2020 Order 
is not applicable. 

xiii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance 
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

where applicable, for all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv)	 (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate 
internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and the nature of its business.

(b) 	 We have considered the internal audit reports 
for the year under audit, issued to the Company 
during the year and till date, in determining the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, during the year the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or 
associate company or persons connected with them 
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi)	a) 	 The company is not required to be registered with 
RBI. The company is not registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. In 
view of the above, clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company.

b) 	 According to the information and explanation 
given to us, the company has not conducted 
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
Activities which require the company to obtain 
certificate of registration (CoR) from Reserve Bank 
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
In view of the above, clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company.

c) 	 According to the information and explanation 
given to us, the company is not a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. In 
view of the above, clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable to the company.

d)  	 As per information & explanation given to us, there 
is no core investment company within the Group 
(as defined in the Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xvii)	There is no Cash Losses incurred during the financial 
year and immediately preceding financial year.

xviii)	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 
of the Company during the year.

xix)	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information 
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accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that 
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither, give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due.

xx)	 a) 	 There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) of other than ongoing 
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in 
Schedule VII to the companies Act in compliance 
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 
135 of the Act.

b) 	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and based on our   examination of the records of 
the company, there is no amount which is remaining 
unspent under sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act 
pursuant to any ongoing CSR projects.

xxi)	 This clause is not applicable to the company. 

For A Bafna & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003660C

Vivek Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No. 400543 
UDIN - 25400543BMLIFB5076

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23-04-2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report
[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s 
Report of even date to the members of StockHolding Services Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2025]
Directions under Section 143(5) of Companies Act 
2013

1.	 Whether the Company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through 
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of 
accounting transactions outside IT system on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated.

	 Yes, the Company has a system in place to process 
all the accounting transactions through various IT 
systems. Based on the verification carried out by us 
on test check basis during the course of our audit 
and based on the information and explanations 
given to us, we have not come across any instance 
having significant implications on the integrity of 
accounts. Some Manual intervention is necessitated 
for the compilation of standalone financial statements, 
however, the necessary effect for the same is passed 
through Core Accounting Software appropriately.

2.	 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver / write off of debts /loans/
interest etc. made by a lender to the company 
due to the company’s inability to repay the 
loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly accounted 
for? (in case, lender is a Government company, 
then its direction is also applicable for statutory 
auditor of lender company).

	 The company does not have any loans, so the question 
of restructuring / waiver / write off does not arises

3.	 Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.)  received 
/ receivable for specific schemes from central / 
state Government or its agencies were properly 
accounted for / utilized as per its terms and 
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, and based on our examination of the records, 
the Company does not have any funds received/ 
receivable for specific schemes from Central/ State 
Government or its agencies.

For A Bafna & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003660C

Vivek Gupta
Partner 
Membership No. 400543
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23/04/2025
UDIN : 25400543BMLIFB5076
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Annexure “C” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph (3f) under ‘Report on Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of StockHolding Services Limited 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with 
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
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considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For A Bafna & Co. 
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003660C

Vivek Gupta
Partner 
Membership No. 400543
Place: Mumbai
Date: 23/04/2025
UDIN : 25400543BMLIFB5076
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)
(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDING SERVICES 

LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of financial statements of StockHolding Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance 
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 
section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act 
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act.

This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 23 April 2025.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the supplementary audit of 
the financial statements of StockHolding Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 under section 143(6)(a) of 
the Act.

       For and on behalf of the 
          Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Vijay Nanalal Kothari)

             Director General of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai

Place : Mumbai

Date : 07.07.2025
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Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2025   								        (` in lakhs)

 Particulars Note
As at  

March 31, 2025
As at  

March 31, 2024
ASSETS      
I. Financial Assets      

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2  812.95  1,870.30 
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 3  9,702.50  9,724.50 
(c) Receivables 4    
    (i) Trade receivables    4,524.37  7,960.32 
(d) Investments 5  -    275.94 
(e) Other financial assets 6  24,372.91  26,545.20 
     39,412.73  46,376.26 

II. Non-financial assets      
(a) Current tax assets (net) 7  -    5.27 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 8  53.75  16.48 
(c) Property, plant and equipment 9  81.03  139.90 
(d) Intangible assets under development  10  48.20  -   
(e) Other Intangible assets 11  242.97  508.75 
(f) Other non-financial assets 12  468.14  431.15 
     894.09  1,101.55 

Total Assets    40,306.82  47,477.81 
       

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY      
LIABILITIES      
I. Financial Liabilities      

(a) Payables 13    
(i) Trade payables      

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small     
enterprises

   -    -   

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
   enterprises and small enterprises

   27,234.73  35,053.14 

(ii) Other payables      
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

   3.83  19.30 

- total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

   123.39  248.68 

(b) Other financial liabilities 14  308.26  421.46 
     27,670.21  35,742.58 

II. Non-financial Liabilities      
(a) Current tax liability (net) 7(b)  39.60  -   
(b) Provisions 15  44.35  35.12 
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 16   393.91  428.21 

 477.86  463.33 
III. EQUITY      

(a) Equity Share Capital 17  608.97  608.97 
(b) Other equity 18  11,549.78  10,662.93 
     12,158.75  11,271.90 

Total Liabilities and Equity    40,306.82  47,477.81 
The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are from an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors        
A BAFNA & CO  	 STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants     
FRN: 003660C       	              

Vivek Gupta	 Prabhat Kumar Dubey    	 Sarala Menon		
Partner	 Managing Director 	 Director		
Membership No. 400543	 & Chief Executive Officer 	 DIN : 08499105 	
	 DIN : 09327875 		   

Place: Mumbai	 Reshma Chalke	 Poonam Chhikara	
Date: April 23, 2025	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary	
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Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2025 								        (` in lakhs)

 Particulars Note
For the year ended  

March 31, 2025
For the year ended  

March 31, 2024

I. Revenue from Operations      

(a) Interest income 19  1,549.09  1,302.91 

(b) Dividend income 20  1.81  2.20 

(c) Fees and commission income 21  10,993.92  10,471.33 

(d) Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 22  69.36  131.82 

(e) Other operating income 23  45.43  51.89 

I. Total revenue from operations    12,659.61  11,960.15 

II. Other income 24  8.11  3.69 

III. Total Income (I+II)    12,667.72  11,963.84 

IV. Expenses      

(a) Finance costs 25  45.14  46.54 

(b) Fees and commission expense 26  7,046.83  6,614.16 

(c) Impairment on financial instruments 27  57.16  18.78 

(d) Employee benefits expenses 28  721.26  806.19 

(e) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 29  326.06  303.98 

(f) Other expenses 30  1,346.24  1,442.07 

Total Expenses    9,542.69  9,231.72 

V. Profit before tax (III-IV)    3,125.03  2,732.12 

VI. Tax expense 31    

(a) Current Tax    871.26  700.62 

(b) Deferred Tax    (36.37)  24.32 

     834.89  724.94 

VII. Profit for the year (V-VI)    2,290.14  2,007.18 

VIII. Other comprehensive income/(expenses)      

(a) (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  

- Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans    (3.59)  (0.01)

(ii)  Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss 

   0.90  -   

Other comprehensive income/(expenses) for the year    (2.69)  (0.01)

IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)    2,287.45  2,007.17 

X. Earnings per equity share: 33  

(a) Basic (`)  37.61  32.96 

(b) Diluted (`)  37.61  32.96 

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are from an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors        
A BAFNA & CO  	 STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants     
FRN: 003660C       	              

Vivek Gupta	 Prabhat Kumar Dubey    	 Sarala Menon		
Partner	 Managing Director 	 Director		
Membership No. 400543	 & Chief Executive Officer 	 DIN : 08499105 	
	 DIN : 09327875 		   

Place: Mumbai	 Reshma Chalke	 Poonam Chhikara	
Date: April 23, 2025	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary	
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Statement of Cash Flow  
for the year ended March 31, 2025								      

(` in lakhs)

Particulars
 For the year ended  

March 31, 2025
 For the year ended  

March 31, 2024 

A.  Cash flow from operating activities    

Profit before tax  3,125.03  2,732.12 

Adjustments  to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows :    

Depreciation, amortization and impairment  326.06  303.98 

Interest Income  (744.95)  (741.61)

Interest On Income Tax Refund  -    (1.65)

Dividend from Investments  (1.81)  (2.20)

Interest cost on Lease liability  4.28  10.27 

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment  (0.53)  (0.60)

Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes  (69.36)  (131.82)

Impairments on financial instruments  57.16  18.78 

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability  (3.59)  (0.01)

Operating profit before working capital changes  2,692.29  2,187.26 

Working capital adjustments :    

(Increase)/ Decrease in other bank balance  22.00  (1,332.00)

(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables  3,378.79  (3,198.06)

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets  2,256.18  (21,228.16)

Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-financial assets  (36.99)  259.59 

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables  (7,959.17)  19,097.91 

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial liabilities  (41.98)  (250.63)

(Increase)/Decrease in provisions  9.23  1.90 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities  (34.30)  63.14 

Cash generated from operations  286.05  (4,399.05)

Direct Taxes paid  (826.39)  (627.30)

Net cash generated/(used in) from operating activities (A)  (540.34)  (5,026.35)

     

B.  Cash flow from investing activities    

Purchase of property plant and equipments  (1.40)  (10.88)

Sale of property plant and equipments  0.55  0.60 

Purchase of Intangible assets including under development  (48.21)  (66.10)

Sale/(Purchase) of Investments  345.30  33.24 

Dividends from Mutual Funds  1.81  2.20 

Interest Earned  661.04  621.25 

Net cash generated/(used in) from investing activities (B) 959.09  580.31 

C.  Cash flow from financing activities

Dividend Paid  (1,400.60)  (243.59)

Repayment of lease liabilities  (75.50)  (72.59)

Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activities (C)  (1,476.10)  (316.18)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (1,057.35)  (4,762.22)

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,870.30  6,632.52 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the  year 812.95  1,870.30 
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Notes				  

1. 	 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS).”				  

2. 	 Component of cash and cash equivalents :  refer note 2.				 

The accompanying notes 1 to 50 are from an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of 	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors        

A BAFNA & CO  	 STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants     
FRN: 003660C       	              

Vivek Gupta	 Prabhat Kumar Dubey    	 Sarala Menon		
Partner	 Managing Director 	 Director		
Membership No. 400543	 & Chief Executive Officer 	 DIN : 08499105 	
	 DIN : 09327875 		   

Place: Mumbai	 Reshma Chalke	 Poonam Chhikara	
Date: April 23, 2025	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary	
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Statement of Changes In Equity
for the year ended March 31, 2025 								      

(A) Equity Share Capital

1. Current reporting period

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
current reporting 

period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 

to prior period 
errors

Restated balance 
at the beginning 

of the current 
reporting period

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the current year

Balance at the 
end of the current 
reporting period

No. of shares 6089703              -                           -                   -   6089703

Amount (` in lakhs) 608.97              -                           -                   -   608.97

2. Previous reporting period						    

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
current reporting 

period

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due 

to prior period 
errors

Restated balance 
at the beginning 

of the current 
reporting period

Changes in 
equity share 

capital during 
the current year

Balance at the 
end of the current 
reporting period

No. of shares 6089703              -                           -                   -   6089703

Amount (` in lakhs) 608.97              -                           -                   -   608.97
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
Note 1:

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1A	 Corporate information

	 Stockholding Services Limited (“The Company”), a subsidiary of Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited was 
incorporated on 14th February, 1995. The Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is at Mahape, Navi 
Mumbai.

	 The Company provides broking, depository services, primary and secondary market distribution services from 
14th March, 2006. The Company is a member of BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Multi 
Commodity Exchange of India Ltd.  The Company is also a depository participant of National Securities Depository 
Limited and Central Depository Services Limited and is also registered as a portfolio manager with Securities and 
Exchange Board of India. The Company is registered as a Mutual Fund Advisor with Association of Mutual Funds in 
India.

	 With effect from 28th March, 2014 Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd. (SHCIL) - the Holding Company, has 
become a subsidiary of IFCI Ltd. & hence IFCI Ltd. is the Ultimate Holding Company for Stockholding Services Ltd. 
from the said date.

1B	 Basis of preparation and presentation

	 1)	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain assets and liabilities where fair value model 
has been used, e.g. certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, net defined benefit assets / 
liabilities etc. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules ,2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as amended 
from time to time.

	 The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. Accounting policies have 
been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to 
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

	 The financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025 are being authorised for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the Board of Directors on April 23, 2025.

2)	 Functional and presentation currency

	 These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. 
All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals unless otherwise indicated.

3)	 Presentation of financial statement

	 The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company as defined in Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. As per the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III 
to the Companies Act, 2013 on 11 October 2018 (as amended), the Company presents the Balance Sheet, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity in the order of liquidity. A maturity analysis 
of recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 
months after the reporting date is presented in note 43.

4)	 Use of estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting 
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate 
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected 
in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements.

a)	 Determination of the estimated useful lives of tangible assets

	 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Act. In 
cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on nature of the 
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asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, 
anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support. Refer note 9 for 
further details.

b)	 Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations:

	 The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation. Key 
actuarial assumptions which form the basis of above valuation includes discount rate, trends in salary 
escalation, demographics and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields 
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. Variation in these assumptions may impact the 
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. Further details are disclosed in note 38.

c)	 Recognition of deferred tax assets / liabilities :

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences 
between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences could be utilized. Further details are disclosed in note 8.

d)	 Business model assessment

	 Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI (Solely Payments of 
Principal and Interest) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level 
that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. 
This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the 
assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and 
how these are managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason 
for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the 
asset was held. Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets are managed in accordance with 
an approved investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such 
assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value being recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which they arise.

e)	 Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies

	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an 
outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual 
outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

	 On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. 
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial 
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent 
liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the 
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and 
amounts are received or receivable.

f)	 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

	 The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. 
Identification of a lease requires Material judgment. The Company uses Material judgement in assessing the 
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The discount rate is generally 
based on the borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated. The Company determines the lease 
term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to 
terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

g)	 Impairment of financial asset

	 The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at 
amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized 
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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h)	 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method

	 The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents 
the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans given / taken and 
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the 
financial instruments.

	 This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgment regarding the expected behavior and life-cycle 
of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/ expense that are 
integral parts of the instrument.

i)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less 
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s 
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The 
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next 
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or Material 
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable 
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows 
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.  

1C	 Material accounting policies

	 The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases 
summarised below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements.

1)	 Revenue from contracts with customers

	 Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a 
single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

	 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

	 Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that 
creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

	 Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a 
customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

	 Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties.

	 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more 
than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in 
an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
satisfying each performance obligation.

	 Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

	 The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

a)	 Brokerage income (net of indirect taxes)

	 Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on trade date basis, in 
accordance with the terms of contract.

b)	 Account opening charges

	 It is recognising entire account opening charges upfront on intimation of trading account number to the Customer. 
This is shown as a part of Revenue from operations.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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c)	 Depository income 

	 Revenue from depository services on account of annual maintenance charges have been accounted for over the 
period of the performance obligation.

	 Revenue from depository services on account of transaction charges is recognised point in time when the 
performance obligation is satisfied.	

d)	 Fees and commission income

	 Fees for subscription based services are received periodically but are recognised as earned on a pro-rata basis 
over the term of the contract. 

	 Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the securities to the 
applicant.

e)	 Dividend Income 

	 Dividend is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

f)	 Interest Income 

	 Interest income on a financial asset at amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account 
the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR’). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash flows of the financial assets through the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, 
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The internal rate of return on financial 
assets after netting off the fees received and cost incurred approximates the effective interest rate method of 
return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of 
the instrument.

g)	 Delayed payment charges

	 Interest is earned on delayed payments from customers and is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding from customers and the rates applicable.

h)	 Cheques dishonoured/bounced Income 

	 Charges collected on cheques dishonoured/bounced are recognized on actual basis.

2)	 Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)

a)	 Recognition and measurement

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset 
to its working condition for the intended use. 

	 Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are 
stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable value and are shown separately in the financial 
statements.

	 Gains or losses arising from disposal or retirement of tangible Property, plant and equipment are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net, 
within “Other Income” or “Other Expenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of 
disposal or retirement.

b)	 Depreciation

	 For the following categories of assets, Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the 
straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company 
provides pro-rata depreciation from the month in which the asset is first providing economic benefit through put 
to use, till date the assets are sold or disposed.

Particulars Useful life w.e.f. 01.04.2014
Residual Value - Nil

1.	 Plant & Machinery 15 years
2.	 Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
3.	 Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 years
4.	 Office Equipment 5 years
5.	 Computer Hardware 3 years

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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	 For the following categories of Property, plant and equipment, the Company has assessed useful life taking 
into account the nature of the asset, the estimates usage of asset, the operating condition of asset, anticipated 
technological changes and utility in the business, as below:

Particulars Useful life as per Schedule 
II    (in year)

Useful life as per estimated by the 
management  (in year)

1.	 Motor Car 8 3
2.	 Mobiles 5 2
3.	 Servers & Networks 6 4

	 Useful life of leased hold improvements is considered at 8 years.

	 Assets costing less than or equal to Rs.5000/- totally are depreciated fully in the year in which such asset is 
purchased.

3)	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

	 Computer software which forms an integral part of the related hardware is capitalised along with the hardware as 
fixed asset. Software which are not an integral part of computer hardware and from which future economic benefits 
are expected are treated as intangible assets.

	 Software developed internally is recognized as an asset at cost when Material economic benefits are expected to 
accrue in future. Cost comprises all expenditure that can be directly attributed for creation, production and making 
the software ready for its intended use and excludes any tax for which input credit is taken. Expenditure on software 
development eligible for capitalisation is carried as “Intangible assets under development” where such assets are not 
yet ready for their intended use.

	 All finite-lived intangible assets, including capitalised internally developed software, are accounted for using the cost 
model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Residual 
values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition, they are subject to impairment testing. The 
following useful lives are applied:

Particulars Useful life
1.	 Computer Software 3 years

	 Amortisation has been included within ‘depreciation and amortisation expense. Subsequent expenditures on the 
maintenance of intangible assets are expensed as incurred. The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized 
on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. When an intangible asset 
is disposed off, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset, and is recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

4)	 Financial Instruments:

	 A.	 Initial recognition

	 The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade 
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added 
to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade 
date.

	 B.	 Subsequent measurement

i)	 Financial assets

	 Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections 
where appropriate, the Company classifies and measures financial assets in the following categories

a)	 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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b)	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

	 Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss are 
recognised. Profit or loss on sale of investments is determined on the basis of first-in-first-out (FIFO) 
basis.

ii)	 Financial liabilities

	 Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, 
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

	 C.	 Impairment

	 The Company recognizes impairment allowances using Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) method on all the financial 
assets that are not measured at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

i)	 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables

	 The Company recognises life time expected credit loss for trade receivables and has adopted the simplified 
method of computation as per Ind AS 109. Under the simplified approach, the Company does not require to 
track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on life time ECLs at each 
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company considers unsecured outstanding overdue for 
more than 90 days for calculation of expected credit loss.

ii)	 Other financial assets

	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit‑ 
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit‑ impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

	 The Company determines if there has been a Material increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial 
recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased Materially, an amount equal to 12-month ECL 
is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased Materially, an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

	 Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a Material 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance 
based on 12-month ECL.

	 D.	 Write-offs

	 Financial assets are written off/fully provided for when there is no reasonable of recovering financial assets in its 
entirety or a portion thereof. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities 
under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

5)	 Fair value measurement

	 Financial instruments, such as, derivatives, equity investments, etc. are measured at fair value at each balance sheet 
date.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

	 •	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

	 • 	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

	 • 	 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

	 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

	 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is Material to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

•	 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• 	 Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is Material to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable.

• 	 Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is Material to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.

	 For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is Material to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

	 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis 
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.

6)	 Leases

	 The Company as a lessee

	 i)	 Lease identification

	 The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company assesses 
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company assess 
whether (a) the contract involves the use of an identified assets; (b) the Company has substantially all the 
economic benefits from use of the assets through the period of the lease and (c) the Company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset.

ii)	 Initial and subsequent measurement

	 At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 
month or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company 
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

	 Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease 
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be 
exercised.

	 The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease 
payments made at or before the inception date of the lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the 
right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over 
the shorter of lease term or useful life of right‑of‑use assets.

	 For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease 
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease.

iii)	 Presentation

	 For lease liabilities has been included in “Other financial liabilities” and ROU asset have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

7)	 Income taxes

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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	 i)	 Current tax

	 Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance 
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable 
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate.

	 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously.

	 ii)	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the future tax consequences of temporary differences being 
the difference between the taxable income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are 
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period. Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary 
differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of 
changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the 
change. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assets 
against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to 
taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

8)	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an in Material 
risk of changes in value.

9)	 Equity, Reserves and Dividend payments

	 Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued. Share premium includes any 
premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted 
from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits. Other components of equity include the following:

	 •	 remeasurement of net defined benefit liability – comprises the actuarial losses from changes

	 • 	 in demographic and financial assumptions and the return on plan assets 

	 Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

	 All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

	 Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been 
approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting date.

10)	Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits

	 Post-employment benefit plans

	 The Company provides post-employment benefits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

	 Defined contribution plans

	 Employee Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are considered as defined contribution 
plans and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Period when the respective 
contributions are due.
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	 Defined benefit plans

	 Retirement Benefit in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis 
of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the balance sheet. Actuarial gain 
or losses if any are immediately recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss.

	 Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. This is based on standard 
rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by 
reference to government or high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits 
will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

	 Service cost on the Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense. Employee contributions, 
all of which are independent of the number of years of service, are treated as a reduction of service cost. Net 
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability is included in finance costs. Gains and losses resulting from 
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability are included in other comprehensive income.

	 Short-term benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current liabilities included in pension and other 
employee obligations, measured at the undiscounted amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the 
unused entitlement.

	 Long-term benefits

	 Obligations on other long term employee benefits viz leave encashment are provided using the projected unit credit 
method of actuarial valuation made at the end of the year.

11)	Provisions & Contingent liabilities

	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 
as realisable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of the 
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate 
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

	 If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to 
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

	 Contingent liabilities

	 Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes in respect of possible obligations that arise from 
past events but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

12)	Earnings per share

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before other comprehensive 
income for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

13)	Segment reporting

	 The Company’s business is to provide broking services, to its clients, in the capital markets in India. All other activities 
of the Company are ancillary to the main business. As such, there are no reportable segments that need to be 
reported separately as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.
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Note 2 : Cash and cash equivalents					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Cash in hand 0.34                        0.34 

Balance with Bank

- In current accounts (Own account)  358.43  1,060.28 

- In current accounts (Client account)  454.18  809.68 

 812.61  1,869.96 

Total  812.95  1,870.30 

Note 3 : Bank balance other than Note (2) above				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Fixed deposits with bank*  9,702.50  9,724.50 

Total  9,702.50  9,724.50 

* 	Fixed deposits lien to
	 Stock exchanges/clearing member & corporation	                    7,197.50 	  7,670.50 
	 Collateral security against bank guarantee	   2,500.00 	  2,054.00 
	 Free fixed deposits	 5.00	 -   

Note 4 : Trade receivables			   	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Unsecured

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good  3,450.33  4,413.54 

Stock exchange receivable  1,074.04  3,546.78 

Undisputed trade receivables - which have significant increase in  
credit risk 

 75.93  18.77 

 Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  10.22  10.22 

 4,610.52  7,989.31 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (86.15)  (28.99)

Total  4,524.37  7,960.32 

*1. 	Trade receivables include Rs.198.25 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 244.22 Lakhs) due from the holding company on behalf 
of the clients.				  

2. 	 No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with 
any other person nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any 
director is a partner, a director or a member.			 

Movements in the Impairment Loss Allowance	 		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Opening balance  28.99  10.22 

Add : Addition during the year  57.16  18.77 

Less : Reversal/write off during the year  -    -   

Closing balance  86.15  28.99 
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Trade Receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2025					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 6 
months

6 months - 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 
3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

4,013.39 116.14 394.84 -   -   4,524.37 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-   57.16 18.77 -   -   75.93 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

-   -   -   -   10.22 10.22 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–
considered good

-   -   -   -   -   -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-   -   -   -   -   -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

-   -   -   -   -   -   

As at March 31, 2024				    (₹ in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than  
6 months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than  
3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

7,711.10 249.21 -   -   -   7,960.31 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-   17.03 1.75 -   -   18.78 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

-   -   -   -   10.22 10.22 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–
considered good

-   -   -   -   -   -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

-   -   -   -   -   -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

-   -   -   -   -   -   

Note 5 : Investments					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Investment at fair value through profit and loss
In Equity Shares (Quoted)
LIC of India Ltd.  -    275.93 
(As at March 31, 2025 : Nil Shares, Face Value of Rs. 10) 
(As at March 31, 2024 : 30,170 Shares, Face Value of Rs. 10)	

In Mutual Fund (Unquoted)
- Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund  -    0.01 
(As at March 31, 2025 : Nil Units, Nil NAV Value)  
(As at March 31, 2024 : 2.835 Units, NAV Value of Rs. 188.1717)

Total  -    275.94 
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Disclosures		  	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Aggregate book value of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments  -    0.01 

(i) At Cost  -    -   

(ii) At Amortised Cost  -    -   

(iii) At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   

(iv) At Fair Value through Profit or Loss  -    275.94 

(i) Investments outside India  -    -   

(ii) Investments in India  -    275.94 

Note 6 : Other financial assets	 				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

(i) Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)

- Capital deposit with Exchanges  188.50  188.50 

- Deposits with Clearing Member (Holding Co.)  -    10.00 

- Security deposits - Others  32.13  28.50 

- Margin deposits with CC  23,816.10  22,174.11 

- Margin Deposits with PCM  42.67  3,911.77 

(ii) Other assets

(unsecured, considered good)

- Other deposit with Exchange  16.06  16.81 

- Accrued interest on fixed deposit  245.39  161.50 

- Receivable from exchanges  32.06  54.01 

(unsecured, significant increase in credit risk)

- Other receivables  19.05  19.05 

 24,391.96  26,564.25 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (19.05)  (19.05)

Total  24,372.91  26,545.20 

Note 7 : Current tax assets (net)		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Advance payment of taxes and tax deducted at source (net of provisions)  -    5.27 

Total  -    5.27 

Movements in the current tax assets/(liabilities) 		  (` in lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Opening balance of assets (net of liability)  5.27  76.94 

Net taxes paid/(refund)  826.39  627.30 

Interest on income tax refund  -    1.65 

Provision for the current period/year  (849.67)  (658.14)

Taxes of the earlier years  (21.59)  (42.48)

Closing balance of net assets/(liabilities)  (39.60)  5.27 
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Note 8 : Deferred tax assets (net)	                                    (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Deferred tax assets on account of :

- Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets  17.16  0.90 

- Provision for impairments  26.48  12.09 

- Provision for compensated Absences  11.16  8.78 

- Provision for Gratuity (net)  -    0.06 

- Lease rental liabities  2.14  20.06 

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :

- Gratuity assets (net)  (1.63)  -   

- Right to use of lease assets  (1.56)  (16.56)

- Net gain on fair value changes  -    (8.85)

Total  53.75  16.48 

Movements in the deferred tax assets				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars Opening 
balance

Recognised 
through profit 

and loss

Recognised 
through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

 Closing 
balance 

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Deferred tax assets on account of :

- PPE and Intangible assets  0.90 16.26  -    17.16 

- Provision for expected credit loss  12.09 14.39  -    26.48 

- Provision for compensated Absences  8.78 2.38  -    11.16 

- Provision for Gratuity  0.06  (0.96)  0.90  -   

- Lease rental liabities  20.06  (17.92)  -    2.14 

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :

- Gratuity assets (net)  -    (1.63)  -    (1.63)

- Right to use of lease assets  (16.56) 15.00  -    (1.56)

- Fair value of Investments  (8.85) 8.85  -    -   

Total  16.48  36.37  0.90  53.75 

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assets on account of :

- PPE and Intangible assets  22.27  (21.37)  -    0.90 

- Provision for expected credit loss  7.37 4.72  -    12.09 

- Provision for compensated Absences  8.36  0.42  -    8.78 

- Provision for Gratuity  -   0.06  -    0.06 

- Lease rental liabities 32.78 (12.72)  -    20.06 

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :

- Gratuity assets (net)  (1.25) 1.25  -    -   

- Right to use of lease assets  (28.73) 12.17  -    (16.56)

- Fair value of Investments  -   (8.85)  -    (8.85)

Total  40.80  (24.32)  -    16.48 
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Note 9 : Property plant and equipment 	         (` in lakhs)

Particulars Leasehold 
Premises

Furniture 
and fixture

Office 
Equipment

Mobiles Vehicles  Computer 
Hardware 

Servers & 
Network

Total

(i) Current Year                

Gross Block                

As at April 1, 2024 86.18 11.07 44.06 11.56 22.90 171.17 403.01 749.95 

Addition -   -   0.99 -   -   0.41 -   1.40 

Disposal/adjustments -   - -   -   -   (15.35) - (15.35)

As at  
March 31, 2025

86.18 11.07 45.05 11.56 22.90 156.23 403.01 736.00 

                 

Accumulated depreciation                

As at April 1, 2024 70.25 4.68 36.71 11.56 22.90 135.32 328.63 610.05 

Depreciation 4.44 0.88 4.95 -   -   23.04 26.96 60.27 

Disposal/adjustments - - - - - (15.35) - (15.35)

As at  
March 31, 2025

74.69 5.56 41.66 11.56 22.90 143.01 355.59 654.97 

                 

Carrying amount As at  
March 31, 2025

11.49 5.51 3.39 -    0* 13.22 47.42 81.03 

                 

(ii) Previous year                

Gross Block                

As at April 1, 2023 86.18 11.07 44.06 11.56 22.90 172.84 481.41 830.02 

Addition -   -   -   -   -   1.91 8.97 10.88 

Disposal/adjustments -   - -   -   -   (3.58) (87.37) (90.95)

As at March 31, 2024 86.18 11.07 44.06 11.56 22.90 171.17 403.01 749.95 

                 

Accumulated depreciation                

As at April 1, 2023 65.81 3.80 29.72 11.11 22.90 110.59 389.94 633.87 

Depreciation 4.44 0.88 6.99 0.45                                28.31 26.06 67.13 

Disposal/adjustments -   - -   -   -   (3.58) (87.37) (90.95)

As at March 31, 2024 70.25 4.68 36.71 11.56 22.90 135.32 328.63 610.05 

                 

Carrying amount as at 
March 31, 2024

15.93 6.39 7.35 -    0* 35.85 74.38 139.90 

* Amount is less than rupee lakh

Note 10 : Intangible assets under development
The Company has entered into an agreement for the purchase of integrated software & its required set-up, and intangible 
assets are under development as on the balance sheet date.					   

As at March 31, 2025				    (` in lakhs) 

Intangible assets under development Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than  
1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Total

Projects in progress  48.20  -    -    -    48.20 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  48.20  -    -    -    48.20 
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As at March 31, 2024				    (` in lakhs)

Intangible assets under development Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than  

3 years
Total

Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended -   -   -   -   -   
Total - - - -   -

Note 11 :  Other Intangible assets				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars Computer 
software

Right to use of 
lease assets

Total

(i) Current Year
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2024  1,069.26  224.12  1,293.38 
Addition  -    -    -   
Disposal/adjustments  -    (3.30)  (3.30)

As at March 31, 2025  1,069.26  220.82  1,290.08 

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2024  626.31  158.32  784.63 
Amortisation  206.18  59.60  265.78 

Disposal/adjustments  -    (3.30)  (3.30)
As at March 31, 2025  832.49  214.62  1,047.11 

Carrying amount As at  March 31, 2025  236.77  6.20  242.97 

(ii) Previous year
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2023  462.26  212.56  674.82 

Addition  607.00  11.79  618.79 
Disposal/adjustments  -    (0.23)  (0.23)

As at March 31, 2024  1,069.26  224.12  1,293.38 

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023  449.61  98.40  548.01 
Amortisation  176.70  60.15  236.85 
Disposal/adjustments  -    (0.23)  (0.23)
As at March 31, 2024  626.31  158.32  784.63 

Carrying amount as at March 31, 2024  442.95  65.80  508.75 

The Company has not revalued any of its intangible assets during the year.

Note 12 : Other non-financial assets			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Prepayments  119.33  80.90 

Gratuity plan assets (net of provision) (refer note 38)  6.49  -   

Balance with government authorities  258.36  275.52 

Other receivables  83.96  74.73 

Total  468.14  431.15 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)



052  |  30th Annual Report 2024-25

Note 13 : Payables       					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

(i) Trade payable
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                             -   
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises
Dues to holding company - sub brokerage  539.09  405.13 
Dues to other sub brokers  77.80  127.41 
Client dues  26,617.84  34,520.60 

 27,234.73  35,053.14 
(ii) Other payable
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  3.83  19.30 
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
   small enterprises

 123.39  248.68 

 127.22  267.98 
Total  27,361.95  35,321.12 

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006	

The Company has sent letters to vendors to confirm whether they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act 2006 as well as they have filed required memorandum with the prescribed authority. Based 
on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers regarding their status under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at year end are 
furnished below:				 

(` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid  3.83  19.30 

Interest due on above and the unpaid interest -                             -   

Interest paid -                             -   

Payment made beyond the appointed day during the period -                             -   

Interest due and payable for the period of delay -                             -   

Interest accrued and remain unpaid -                             -   

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding period -                             -   

As at March 31, 2025							       (` in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/transaction

Less than 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

(i) MSME  3.83  -   -   -   

(ii) Others  27,234.73  123.39 -   

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME -   -   -   -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others -   -   -   -   

Total  27,238.56  123.39 -   -   

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment/transaction

Less than 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 years 

(i) MSME  19.30  -   -                             -   

(ii) Others  35,053.14  248.68 -                             -   

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME                           -   -   -                             -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others                           -   -   -                             -   

Total  35,072.44  248.68 -                             -   
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Note 14 : Other financial liabilities                                      			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Margin deposits from other sub brokers  69.29  76.79 

Deposits from others  18.00  11.00 

Due to holding company - others  26.87  6.24 

Employee benefits payable  122.28  121.76 

Lease rental liabilities (refer note 34)  8.49  79.71 

Other net payables  63.33  125.96 

Total  308.26  421.46 

Note 7(b) : Current tax liability (net)						      (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Current tax liabilities (net of taxes paid)  39.60  -   
Total  39.60  -   

Note 15 : Provisions						      (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 38)

Provision for gratuity  -    0.23 

Provision for compensated absences  44.35  34.89 

Total  44.35  35.12 

Note 16 : Other non-financial liabilities     			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Statutory dues including provident fund and taxes  388.85  377.00 

Others-(client's fund)  -    14.79 

Payable to exchange (includes amount due on settlement)  5.06  36.42 

Total  393.91  428.21 

Note 17 : Equity Share Capital

(A) Authorised, Issued , Subscribed & Paid up					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at  March 31, 2025  As at  March 31, 2024 

 Number (` in lakhs)  Number (` in lakhs)

Authorised

Equity Shares  of `10 each fully paid  1,80,00,000  1,800.00  1,80,00,000  1,800.00 

7% Non-Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of 
`10 each fully paid

 20,00,000  200.00  20,00,000  200.00 

 2,00,00,000  2,000  2,00,00,000  2,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

Equity Shares of `10 each fully paid  60,89,703  608.97  60,89,703  608.97 

Total  60,89,703  608.97  60,89,703  608.97 

(B) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period/year

 As at  March 31, 2025  As at  March 31, 2024

Number (` in lakhs)  Number (` in lakhs)

Equity Shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  60,89,703  608.97  60,89,703  608.97 

Addition during the year                          -                           -                         -                           - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  60,89,703  608.97  60,89,703  608.97 
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(C)	 Terms/rights attached to shares				  

	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares			 

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each holder of equity share is 
entitled to one vote per share except in the case of voting by show of hands.				  

(D) 	Details of shares held by holding company & shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the 
company							            

 (` in lakhs)

Name of Shareholder  As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Number  % Number  % 

Equity Shares

Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited*  60,89,703 100 60,89,703 100

*It includes one share each held by the other seven share holders in the capacity of nominees of the Stock Holding 
Corporation of India Limited.				  

(E)	 Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years				 

	 The Company has not issued any bonus shares.				 

	 The Company has not undertaken any buyback of shares.				  

(F)	 Promoter details				  

	 The followings are disclosure of shares held by promoters 				  

Promoter name No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares

% Change during 
the period /year

As at March 31, 2025
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited  60,89,703 100 NIL
As at  March 31, 2024
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited  60,89,703 100 NIL

Note 18 : Other equity    	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

Reserve & surplus

(a) Securities premium

Opening balance  928.45  928.45 

Changes during the year                             -                             -   

Closing balance                      928.45                   928.45 

(b) Retained earnings

Opening balance  9,744.58  7,980.99 

Dividends  (1,400.60)  (243.59)

Profit for the year  2,290.14  2,007.18 

Closing balance  10,634.12  9,744.58 

(c) Other Comprehensive income

Opening balance  (10.10)  (10.09)

Changes during the year  (2.69)  (0.01)

Closing balance  (12.79)  (10.10)

Total  11,549.78  10,662.93 

Nature and purpose of the reserves				  

Securities premium				  
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes such as 
issuance of bonus shares, and writing off the preliminary expenses in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013.
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Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less dividends or other distributions paid to 
shareholders. It also includes actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognised in other comprehensive 
income (net of taxes). It are available to distribution to shareholders.				  

Note 19 : Interest income      			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on deposits with banks/exchanges  744.95  741.61 
Delayed payments charges  804.14  561.30 
Total  1,549.09  1,302.91 

Note 20 : Dividend income	 			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Dividend on investment  1.81  2.20 

Total  1.81  2.20 

Note 21 : Fees and commission income	 			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Brokerage income  10,969.51  10,429.26 
Distribution income  17.71  26.77 
Depository income  6.70  15.30 
Total  10,993.92  10,471.33 

Note 22 : Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Net Gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or 
loss
(i) On trading portfolio
- Investment in equity shares*  69.36  131.82 
Total  69.36  131.82 

*Fair value changes				  
- Realised	   69.36  	   4.75 
- Unrealised	 - 	   127.07 

Note 23 : Other operating income				    (` in lakhs

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Other broking operating income  45.43  51.89 

Total  45.43  51.89 

Note 24 : Other income					    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Interest on income tax Refund  -    1.65 
Interest income on security deposit (refer note 34)  0.06  0.12 
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  0.53  0.60 
Miscellaneous income  7.52  1.32 
Total  8.11  3.69 
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Note 25 : Finance costs					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Interest cost on lease liability (refer note 34)  4.28  10.27 
Financing charges  40.86  36.27 
Total  45.14  46.54 

Note 26 : Fees and commission expense				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Sub - brokerage expenses*  7,046.83  6,614.16 

Total  7,046.83  6,614.16 

* Includes the sharing of delayed payment charges with the Holding Company with effect from April 1, 2024.	
	
Note 27 : Impairment on financial instruments	 				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

On financial instruments measured at fair value through OCI                             -                             -   

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
- trade receivables (refer note 45)  57.16  18.78 
Total  57.16  18.78 

Note 28 : Employee benefits expenses				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Salaries, allowances and bonus*  648.42  728.59 
Contribution to provident and other funds  26.05  26.42 
Staff welfare expenses  44.32  46.44 
Training and development  2.47  4.74 
Total  721.26  806.19 

*Salaries, allowances and bonus is net of salaries of employees deputed to holding company is `13.17 lakhs (previous 
year `2.43 lakhs) and deputed from holding company is `81.31 lakhs (previous year `125.18 lakhs)

Note 29 : Depreciation, amortization and impairment	 		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Depreciation
- on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 9)  60.27  67.13 
Amortization
- on Intangible assets (refer note 11)  265.79  236.85 
Total  326.06  303.98 
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Note 30 : Other expenses			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Rent, taxes and energy costs:
Rent, rates & taxes  4.83  2.28 
Electricity charges  23.21  22.90 
Repairs and maintenance:
Repairs & maintenance  -  software  497.48  547.15 
Repairs & maintenance  - plant & machinery  23.81  13.00 
Repairs & maintenance  - others  7.56  7.57 
Communication costs:
Connectivity charges  73.30  68.28 
Postage & courier  10.61  5.61 
Telephone & communication  14.59  15.70 
Printing and stationery  13.95  11.05 
Advertisement, publicity and business promotions:
Advertisement & publicity  1.31  3.95 
Sales promotion expenses  16.01  29.37 
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses  30.10  27.80 
Auditor’s fees and expenses*  23.87  17.07 
Legal and professional charges:
Legal fees  20.80  10.63 
Professional fees  80.59  85.54 
Insurance  107.51  102.90 
Other expenditures:
Outsourcing expenses - professional  23.48  37.07 
Outsourcing expenses - contractor  124.49  165.47 
Exchange/DP expenses  101.67  134.22 
Bank charges  1.40  0.53 
Security charges  13.30  12.24 
Subscription charges  24.89  41.56 
Travelling & conveyance  14.35  12.25 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 37)  50.30  47.50 
Sundry balances written off (refer note 41)  2.63  1.35 
Other miscellaneous expenses**  40.20  19.08 
Total  1,346.24  1,442.07 

**SEBI has levied penalties on account of irregularities found during the inspection.			 

*Payments to the auditors	 		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

(a) As Auditor,  22.00  15.00 

(b) For taxation matters,  1.50  1.00 

(c) For company law matters,  -    -   

(d) For other services,  -    0.92 

(e) For reimbursement of expenses  0.37  0.15 

Total  23.87  17.07 
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Note 31 : Tax expense	 		  (` in lakhs)
(a) Tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

(i) Current Tax

- Current  year's tax  849.67  658.14 

- Earlier years  21.59  42.48 

 871.26  700.62 

(ii) Deferred Tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

- Charged/(Credited) to profit & loss statement  (36.37)  24.32 

- Charged/(Credited) to other comprehensive income  (0.90)  -   

 (37.27)  24.32 

Total  833.99  724.94 

(b) A reconciliation of Income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate 
to the income before taxes is summarized below:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Profit before taxes  3,125.03  2,732.12 

Enacted tax rates in India (%) 25.168% 25.168%

Computed expected tax expense  786.51  687.62 

Adjustments :

-Effect of exempt non-operating income  -    (31.98)

-Employee benefits (net)  (0.90)  -   

-Depreciation  31.26  (5.41)

-Other non-deductible expenses  51.94  26.33 

-Other deductible expenses  (19.14)  (18.42)

Income tax expenses  849.67  658.14 

(c) The Company does not have unused tax losses.

Note 32 : Contingent liabilities and Commitments					     (` in lakhs)

(a) 	Contingent liabilities						    

i)	 Bank Guarantee are been taken from banks and kept with exchanges as a margin to meet the margin 
obligation	 	

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

a) Bank guarantee with exchange as margin (` in lakhs) 5000 4000

b) Fixed deposit pledged for bank guarantee (` in lakhs) 2500 2054

(b)  Commitments						    

	 Estimated  amount  of  contracts  remaining  to  be  executed on capital account and not provided for the Year ended 
March 31, 2025 - `190 lakhs (Previous year ended March 31, 2024 - `NIL)			 

Note 33 : Earnings per equity share (EPS)	 					   

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the period/year by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period/year.		

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)



   StockHolding Services Limited (Formerly SHCIL Services Limited)  |  059   

Board & Management Financial Statements

Diluted earnings per share						    

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the period by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the period/year for the purpose of basic EPS plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Profit for the period/year  - for basic EPS ` in lakhs  2,290.14  2,007.18 

Weighted average no. of shares - basic EPS Nos.  60,89,703  60,89,703 

Basic EPS `  37.61  32.96 

Profit for the period/year  - for diluted EPS ` in lakhs  2,290.14  2,007.18 

Weighted average no. of shares - diluted EPS Nos.  60,89,703  60,89,703 

Diluted EPS `  37.61  32.96 

Face value per share `                             10                           10 

Note 34 :  Code on Social Security, 2020	

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration.						    

Company as a lessee						    

The Company has entered into following operating Lease  :

(a)	 4th Cross Street, Puducherry , whereby K Jayakumar Raj  had granted to the Company, the liberty to use and occupy 
the Demised Premises as a office space for a period of One years w. e. f. from August 01, 2024 with refundable 
secuirty deposit purely as a License-cum-Allottee of office space, without having any right, title or interest upon the 
demised premises.					   

(b)	 Server Rack space had grated to the company by SHCIL, the liability to use and occupy the demised premised as 
keeping  of server for the period of five years w. e. f. from July 2020 as license -cum- Allottee of office Server space 
without having any right , title , or interest upon the demised premises. The Company has re-entered into agreement 
with SHCIL for said arrangement for the period of five years after the end the said arrangement.		

(c)	 Mahape, Navi Mumbai, whereby SHCIL has granted to the Company, the liberty to use and occupy the Demised 
Premises as a office space for a period of three years  w. e. f. from April 1, 2022 purely as a License-cum-Allottee of 
office space, without having any right, title or interest upon the demised premises.				  

(d)	 Mahape, Navi Mumbai, whereby SHCIL has granted to the Company, the liberty to use and occupy the Demised 
Premises as a additional office space other than the (c) above for a period of two years  w. e. f. from April 1, 2023 
purely as a License-cum-Allottee of office space, without having any right, title or interest upon the demised premises.

Disclosure		  				  

(i)	 The details of carrying amount of Right to use Asset of the company are as follows:

				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Opening balance  65.80  114.16 

Add : Addition during the year  -    11.79 

Less :Deletion during the year  -    -   

Less : Depreciation  59.60  60.15 

Closing balance  6.20  65.80 
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(ii) Movements in lease liabilities						      (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Opening balance  79.71  130.24 

Add : Addition during the period  -    11.79 

Add : interest cost during the period  4.28  10.27 

Less :Deletion during the period  -    -   

Less : lease payments  75.50  72.59 

Closing balance  8.49  79.71 

(iii) Following is maturity analysis of contractual discounted cash flows of lease liabilities		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Less than six months  8.49  34.94 

Six months to one year  -    36.29 

One year to three years  -    8.48 

Three years to Five years  -    -   

More than five years  -    -   

Closing balance  8.49  79.71 

(iv) Amount recognised in statement of profit & loss	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

On lease

Interest cost on lease liabilities  4.28  10.27 

Depreciation on right of use assets  59.60  60.15 

On deposit

Interest income on security deposit  0.06  0.12 

lease expenses  0.06  0.11 

Other

Rental Expenses recorded for short-term lease payments not included in 
the measurement of the lease liability

 0.69  -   

(v) Amount recognised in statement of cash flow				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

Cash payments for the principal & interest portion of the lease liability 
within financing activities		

 75.50  72.59 

Short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and 
variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease 
liability within operating activities.

 0.69  -   

Note 35 : Related Party Disclosures						    

A.   The related parties for SSL as per the new Companies Act would inter-alia include the following 	
	 (a)	 Ultimate Holding Company of SSL					   

	 IFCI Limited					   

(b)	 Holding Company of SSL					   

	 Stock Holding Corporation of India limited (SHCIL)					   

(c)	 Associate Company of SSL					   
	 Stock Holding Document Management Services Limited (subsidiary of SHCIL)				  
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(d)	 Key Management Personnel (KMP) of SSL					   

1.  Mr. Atul Saxena  - Non-executive Chairman (from September 23 ,2024)*		

2.  Mr. Manoj Kumar Parida - Non-executive Director and Chairman effective from January 16,2024*

                                             Non-executive Chairman (upto September 22, 2024 )*

3.  Mr. Ramesh N G S - Non executive Chairman (upto April 13, 2023)*		

4.  Mr.  Amit Dassi - Non executive Director*		

5.  Mrs. Sarala Menon - Non executive Director*		

6.  Mr. Chirag Sapra -  Non executive Director *		

7.  Mr. G Anantharaman - Independent Director* (upto January 01,2025)		

8.  Mr. D.C. Jain - Independent Director *		

9. Mr Girraj Prasad Garg - Independent Director (wef March 29, 2025)*		

10.  Mr. Prabhat Kumar Dubey - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (from August 1,2024)

11.Mr. Sanjay Pote -  Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (upto July 31,2024) 		

12. Mr. Rajneesh singh - Company Secretary (upto March 31, 2024)		

13. Mr. Hemang Ladani - Chief Financial Officer (upto January 17,2025)		

14. Ms. Swati Goyal - Company Secretary (upto November 14, 2024)		

15.Ms. Reshma Chalke   Chief financial Officer (wef January 24,2025)		

16.Ms. Poonam Chhikara  Company Secretary  (wef January 24,2025)		

* The ICAI - Ind AS Transition facilitation group’s bulletin dated July 31,2017 clarified independent directors 
coverage under definition of KMP under para 9 of Ind AS 24. Disclosures being made in this section accordingly 
for said purposes.					   

(e)	 Trust wherein the Company has control					   

	 SSL Gratuity and Superannuation Trust					   

(f)	 Trust wherein the Holding company has control					   

	 SHCIL Foundation	

B.  Particulars of Transaction with Related Parties		
(` in lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Nature of transactions Relationship For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

1 Brokerage income Ultimate holding company  -    -   

Holding Company  0.11  0.13 

Key Managerial Personnel and 
their relatives

 0.04  0.25 

2 Service charges received Holding Company  13.21  27.87 

3 Outsourcing expenses Fellow subsidiary  20.47  63.91 

4 Sub - brokerage expenses Holding Company  5,971.77  5,371.67 

5 Reimbursement of expenses (net) Holding Company  223.83  252.09 

6 Sitting fees Ultimate holding company  3.00  2.00 

Key Managerial  Personnel  12.30  15.00 

7 Salary/deputation cost of  
employees

Holding Company  30.46  64.89 

Key Managerial  Personnel  96.34  112.10 

8 Contributions Trust wherein the Company has 
control

 16.57  0.35 

9 Donations Trust wherein the Holding 
company has control

 50.30  47.50 
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C.  Particulars of outstanding with Related Parties as on balance sheet date (` in lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Nature of transactions Relationship As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

1 Trade and other payable Holding Company  26.87  6.24 
Fellow Subsidary Company  7.09  2.19 

2 Trade and other receivable Holding Company  198.25  198.25 
Ultimate holding company  0.50  -   

3 Margin deposits receivable Holding Company  41.17  3,920.27 

Note 36 : Managerial Remuneration				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

MD & CEO , CFO and Company Secretary
Salary, Allowances & Incentives (Including GST)  110.25  122.96 
Contribution to Provident Fund  3.97  4.20 
Contribution to Retirement Benefits  0.70  2.97 
Total  114.92  130.14 

Note 37: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
1. Details of CSR spent	 			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

(a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year  50.30  47.50 
(b) Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets  -    -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above - in cash  50.30  47.50 
(c) Amount yet to be spent                             -                              -   

2. 	 Related party transaction during the period to CSR expenditure is `50.30 (previous year `47.50 lakhs)

3. 	 Corporate social Responsibility (CSR) amount has been paid to M/s. SHCIL Foundation Trust. The CSR activities of 
the Trust include eradicating hunger, poverty; promoting healthcare, education & sanitation; ensuring environmental 
sustainability, etc.

Note 38 : Employee benefits

A.	 Defined contribution plans:

	 The company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss;				  
(` in lakhs)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Contribution to Employees Provident and other Funds  26.05  26.42 

 Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund  -    -   

 Total  26.05  26.42 

B. 	 Defined benefits plans:

1.	 Gratuity

(i) Funded status of the plan				    (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Present value of unfunded obligations  -    -   

 Present value of funded obligations  57.37  45.55 

 Fair value of plan assets  63.86  45.32 

 Net Liability (Asset)  (6.49)  0.23 
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	 (ii) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation				    (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  45.55  40.12 

 Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

 Current service cost  6.48  6.12 

 Interest cost  3.28  2.97 

 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in financial assumptions  3.07  1.04 

 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

 Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience  1.38  (1.43)

 Past service cost  -    -   

 Benefits paid  (2.39)  (3.27)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  57.37  45.55 

	 (iii) Reconciliation of plan assets					     (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Opening value of plan assets  45.32  45.07 

 Transfer in/(out) plan assets  -    -   

 Expenses deducted from the fund  -    -   

 Interest Income  3.50  3.57 

 Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  0.86  (0.40)

 Assets distributed on settlements  -    -   

 Contributions by employer  16.57  0.35 

 Benefits paid  (2.39)  (3.27)

Closing value of plan assets  63.86  45.32 

	 (iv) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss				   (` in lakhs)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Service cost: 

Current service cost  6.48  6.12 

Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement  -    -   

Net interest cost  (0.22)  (0.60)

Total  6.26  5.52 

	 (v) Amounts recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income			   (` in lakhs)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations: 

Due to Change in financial assumptions  3.07  1.04 

Due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

Due to experience adjustments  1.38  (1.43)

 Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest 
income 

 (0.86)  0.40 

Total  3.59  0.01 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)



064  |  30th Annual Report 2024-25

	 (vi) Composition of the plan assets  			

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024

 Government of India Securities 0% 0%

 State Government Securities 0% 0%

 High quality corporate bonds 0% 0%

 Equity shares of listed companies 0% 0%

 Property 0% 0%

 Special Deposit Scheme 0% 0%

 Policy of insurance 100% 100%

 Bank Balance 0% 0%

 Other Investments 0% 0%

 Total 100% 100%

	  (vii) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability						      (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Net opening provision in books of accounts  0.23  (4.95)

 Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

 Transfer (in)/out plan assets  -    -   

 Employee Benefit Expense  6.26  5.52 

 Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  3.59  0.01 

 10.08  0.58 

 Benefits paid by the Company  -    -   

 Contributions to plan assets  (16.57)  (0.35)

Closing provision in books of accounts  (6.49)  0.23 

	 (viii) Principle actuarial assumptions				  

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Discount Rate 6.80% 7.30%

 Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

 Withdrawal Rates  2% p.a at all ages  2% p.a at all ages 

 Rate of Return on Plan Assets  6.80% p.a.  7.30% p.a. 

	 (ix) Sensitivity to key assumptions (Change in DBO) 			 

 Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 % (` in lakhs)  % (` in lakhs)

Discount rate varied by  +0.5% -5.36%  54.28 -5.55%  43.02 

 -0.5% 5.79%  60.69 6.01%  48.28 

Salary growth varied by  +0.5% 5.14%  60.31 5.26%  47.94 

 -0.5% -4.80%  54.61 -5.67%  42.97 

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) varied by 10%  W.R. x 110% 0.36%  57.57 0.44%  45.75 

 W.R. x 90% -0.37%  57.15 -0.45%  45.34 
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	 (x) Expected benefit payments

Particulars As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024 

Cash flows 
(` in lakhs)

 % Cash flows 
(` in lakhs)

 % 

Year 1  1.53 1.10%  1.25 1.00%

Year 2  1.62 1.20%  1.34 1.10%

Year 3  1.75 1.30%  1.42 1.20%

Year 4  1.89 1.40%  1.54 1.30%

Year 5  6.84 5.00%  1.65 1.40%

Year 6 to Year 10  17.74 13.00%  18.75 15.70%

	 The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.

2	 Leave encashments

	 (a) Ordinary leave benefits

	 (i) Funded status of the plan					     (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Present value of unfunded obligations  27.28  23.18 

 Present value of funded obligations  -    -   

 Fair value of plan assets  -    -   

 Net Liability (Asset)  27.28  23.18 

	 (ii) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation				    (` in lakhs)

 Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  23.18  22.23 

 Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

 Current service cost  14.23  12.24 

 Interest cost  1.53  1.51 

 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in financial assumptions  0.58  0.20 

 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

 Actuarial loss/ (gain) due to experience  (0.82)  (4.36)

 Past service cost  -    -   

 Benefits paid  (11.41)  (8.64)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  27.29  23.18 

	 (iii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss			  (` in lakhs)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Service cost: 

Current service cost  14.23  12.24 

Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement  -    -   

Net interest cost  1.53  1.51 

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations: 

Due to Change in financial assumptions  0.58  0.20 

Due to change in demographic assumption  -    -   

Due to experience adjustments  (0.82)  (4.36)

Total  15.52  9.59 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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	 (iv) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Net opening provision in books of accounts  23.18  22.23 

 Transfer in/(out) obligation  -    -   

 Employee Benefit Expense  15.52  9.59 

 Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  -    -   

 38.70  31.82 

Benefits paid by the Company  (11.41)  (8.64)

Contributions to plan assets  -    -   

Closing provision in books of accounts  27.29  23.18 

(v) Principle actuarial assumptions

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Discount Rate 6.80% 7.30%

Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal Rates  2% p.a at all ages  2% p.a at all ages 

Leave Availment Rate  5% p.a.  5% p.a. 

Leave Encashment Rate  10% p.a.  10% p.a. 

	 (vi) Sensitivity to key assumptions (Change in DBO)

 Particulars  For the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

% (` in lakhs) % (` in lakhs)

Discount rate varied by +0.5% -2.11%  26.71 -2.11%  22.67 

-0.5% 2.21%  27.89 2.20%  23.67 

Salary growth varied by +0.5% 2.24%  27.89 2.24%  23.68 

-0.5% -2.16%  26.70 -2.16%  22.66 

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) varied by 10% W.R. x 110% -0.14%  27.25 -0.15%  23.13 

W.R. x 90% 0.15%  27.32 0.15%  23.20 

	 (vii) Expected benefit payments

 Particulars As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

(` in lakhs)  % (` in lakhs)  % 

 Year 1  5.10 13.30%  4.41 13.10%

 Year 2  4.48 11.70%  3.87 11.50%

 Year 3  3.93 10.20%  3.40 10.10%

 Year 4  3.45 9.00%  2.99 8.90%

 Year 5  3.42 8.90%  2.62 7.80%

 Year 6 to Year 10  10.36 27.00%  9.36 27.90%

	 The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)

	 (b) Sick leave benefits

	 (i) Principle actuarial assumptions

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

 Discount Rate 6.80% 7.30%

 Salary Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

 Withdrawal Rates  2% p.a at all ages  2% p.a at all ages 

 Leave Availment Rate  3% p.a.  3% p.a. 

 Leave Encashment Rate  0% p.a.  0% p.a. 

(ii) Sensitivity to key assumptions (Change in DBO)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

% (` in lakhs) % (` in lakhs)

Discount rate varied by +0.5% -3.20%  16.52 -3.10%  11.36 

-0.5% 3.40%  17.64 3.28%  12.10 

Salary growth varied by +0.5% 3.44%  17.65 3.34%  12.12 

-0.5% -3.27%  16.51 -3.18%  11.35 

Withdrawal rate (W.R.) varied by 10% W.R. x 110% -1.42%  16.82 -1.38%  11.56 

W.R. x 90% 1.45%  17.31 1.41%  11.89 

Note 39: Revenue from contracts with customers						    

The Company derives revenue primarily from the broking business. Its other major revenue sources are the distribution 
income and interest income.						    

Disaggregate revenue information						    

1.	 The table below presents disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2025 
by type of revenue segregated into its operating segments. The Company believes that this disaggregation best 
depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by market and other 
economic factors.					   

	 Nature of Services					   

(a) 	Broking Income  : Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services, in 
accordance with the terms of contract.					   

(b) 	Distribution Income : Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of 
the securities to the applicant. Fees for subscription based services are received periodically but are recognised 
as earned on a pro-rata basis over the term of the contract					   

(c) 	 Interest Income :  Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them. Interest 
income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding from customers or 
on the financial instrument and the rate applicable.					   

(d) 	Depository income :  Income from services rendered onbehalf of depository is recognised upon rendering of 
the services, in accordance with the terms of contract.
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 2.	 Disaggregate revenue information:						      (` in lakhs)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Broking income  10,969.51  10,429.26 

Distribution income  17.71  26.77 

Interest income  1,549.09  1,302.91 

Depository income  6.70  15.30 

Total  12,543.01  11,774.24 

Geographical markets 

India  12,543.01  11,774.24 

Outside India  -    -   

Timing of revenue recognition 

Service transferred at point in time  12,536.31  11,758.94 

Service transferred over time  6.70  15.30 

4.	 Nature, timing of satisfaction of the performance obligation and significant payment terms.			 

(a) 	 Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services.		

(b) 	 Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the securities to the 
applicant or as the case may be, on issue of the insurance policy to the applicant.

(c) 	 Interest is earned on delayed payments from clients and amounts funded to them as well as term deposits with 
banks. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding from 
customers or on the financial instrument and the rate applicable.					   

	 The above services are point in time in nature, and no performance obligation remains once the transaction is 
executed.					   

(d) Fees for subscription based services are received periodically but are recognised as earned on a pro-rata basis 
over the term of the contract, and are over the period in nature.

5.	 Contract balances

 Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Assets 

Trade receivables (excluding impairment)  4,610.52  7,989.31 

Liabilities 

Trade payables  27,361.95  35,321.12 

Prepaid brokerage -                              -   

Note 40 : Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

Note 41 : 						    

The Company has framed a policy for written back certain payables for which no claim was received and also written off 
old balances as defined in the policy.						    

The following are details of the written back and written off;					     (` in lakhs)

 Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2025

For the year ended 
March 31, 2024

 Written back  -    -   

 Written off  2.63  1.35 
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Note 42 : Segment Reporting	 					   

The Company operates only in one segment i.e. stock broking and all other activities are ancillary to the main business.
Hence there are no reportable segments  as defined in Indian Accounting Standard  (IND AS -108) on “Segment 
Reporting”. 						    

The Company operates one geographic segment namely ‘within India’, hence no separate information for geographic 
segment wise disclosure is required.						    

No single customer accounts for the revenue, which is equal or more than ten percent of the total revenue of the entity, 
hence no such segment could be identified.						   

Note 43 : Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities				    (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

within 12 
months

after 12 
months

within 12 
months

after 12 
months

ASSETS 
(i) Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents  812.95  -    1,870.30  -   
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above  9,670.00  32.50  9,599.50  125.00 
(c) Trade receivables  4,129.53  394.84  7,948.34  11.97 
(d) Investments  -  -    275.94  -   
(e) Other financial assets  24,136.22  236.69  26,327.17  218.03 

(ii) Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (net)  -    -    -    5.27 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)  -    53.75  -    16.48 
(c ) Property, plant and equipment  -    81.03  -    139.90 
(d) Intangible assets under development  48.20  -    -    -   
(e) Other Intangible assets  262.21  (19.24)  262.21  246.54 
(f) Other non-financial assets  384.18  83.96  376.25  54.90 

Total Assets  39,443.29  863.53  46,659.71  818.09 
LIABILITIES 
(i) Financial liabilities

(a) Payables  27,361.95  -    35,319.54  -   
(b) Other financial liabilities  238.97  69.29  365.54  85.28 

(ii) Non-financial liabilities
(a) Current tax liability (net)  39.60  -    -    -   
(b) Provisions  13.77  30.58  8.56  26.56 
(c) Other non-financial liabilities  393.91  -    254.55  14.79 

Total Liabilities  28,048.20  99.87  35,948.19  126.63 
Net Assets  11,395.09  763.66  10,711.52  691.46 

Note 44 : Financial instruments						   

A.	 Financial Instruments by category					   

	 The following table shows the carrying amounts of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which are classified as 
Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) and Amortised 
Cost.	

(` in lakhs)

 Particulars  Classification  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 Financial assets 

 (a) Cash and cash equivalents  At amortised  812.95  1,870.30 

 (b) Term deposits with banks  At amortised  9,702.50  9,724.50 

 (c) Trade receivables  At amortised  4,524.37  7,960.32 

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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 Particulars  Classification  As at 
March 31, 2025 

 As at 
March 31, 2024 

 (d) Investments  FVTPL  -    275.94 

 (e) Other financial assets  At amortised  24,372.91  26,545.20 

 Total  39,412.73  46,376.26 

 Financial liabilities 

 (a) Trade payables  At amortised  27,234.73  35,053.14 

 (b) Other payables  At amortised  127.22  267.98 

 (c) Other financial liabilities  At amortised  308.26  421.46 

 Total  27,670.21  35,742.58 

B.	 Fair value hierarchy					   

	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.		
This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments 
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost. To provide an indication 
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into 
the three levels prescribed under the Indian Accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath 
the table.	

	 Level 1: This level hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in 
level 2.	

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included 
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included 
in level 

	 The following table summarises financial instruments measured at fair value			   (` in lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2  Level 3  Total 

As at March 31, 2025

Financial assets 

Financial investments at FVTPL 

- Investment in Quoted Shares - -   -   -

- Mutual funds - -   -   -

As at March 31, 2024

Financial assets 

Financial investments at FVTPL 

- Investment in Quoted Shares  275.93  -    -    275.93 

- Mutual funds  0.01  -    -    0.01 

	 Net assets value (NAV) of the scheme is technique used to determine fair value of mutual funds.

C.	 Transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3					   

	 There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3.					   

D.	 Financial instruments not measured at fair value					   

	 Financial assets not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, term & other deposits, trade 
receivables, and other financial assets. These are financial assets whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, 
due to their short-term nature.					  

	 Additionally, financial liabilities such as trade payables and other financial liabilities are not measured at FVTPL, whose 
carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature.				  
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Note 45 : Financial risk management

Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, it is managed through an integrated 
risk management framework, including on-going identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and 
other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and each individual 
within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.			 

The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments:	

(a)	 Credit risk
(b)	 Liquidity risk
(c)	 Market risk					   

The Company has established various policies with respect to such risks which set forth limits, mitigation strategies and 
internal controls to be implemented by the three lines of defence approach provided below. The Company’s board of 
directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. 
The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and 
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its 
activities.	

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its 
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment 
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The risk management system features a “three lines of defence” approach:					   

1.	 The first line of defence comprises its operational departments, which assume primary responsibility for their own 
risks and operate within the limits stipulated in various policies approved by the Board or by committees constituted 
by the Board.					   

2.	 The second line of defence comprises specialised departments such as Risk Management Committee, Investment 
Committee, Internal Executive Audit Committee, and compliance. They employ specialised methods to identify and 
assess risks faced by the operational departments and provide them with specialised risk management tools and 
methods, facilitate and monitor the implementation of effective risk management practices, develop monitoring tools 
for risk management, internal control and compliance, report risk related information and promote the adoption of 
appropriate risk prevention measures.					   

3.	 The third line of defence comprises the internal audit department and external audit functions. They monitor and 
conduct periodic evaluations of the risk management, internal control and compliance activities to ensure the adequacy 
of risk controls and appropriate risk governance, and provide the Board with comprehensive feedback.	

(A)	 Credit Risk	

	 Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their 
contractual obligation. The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is 
willing to accept for individual counterparties, and by monitoring exposures in relations to such limits.

	 The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments is the carrying amount of that class of 
financial instruments presented in the financial statements. The Company’s major classes of financial assets are cash 
and cash equivalents, loans, investments in mutual fund units, term deposits, trade receivables, security deposits and 
margin placed with the clearing member/corporation.

	 Deposits with banks are considered to have negligible risk or nil risk, as they are maintained with high rated banks/
financial institutions as approved by the Board of Directors. Security deposits are kept with stock exchanges for meeting 
minimum base capital requirements. These deposits do not have any credit risk. Investments include investment in 
liquid mutual fund units that are marketable securities of eligible financial institutions for a specified time period with 
high credit rating given by domestic credit rating agencies.					   

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and other receivables	       (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

 Trade receivables (net of impairment)  4,524.37  7,960.32 

 Other financial assets (net of impairment)  24,372.91  26,545.20 

Total  28,897.28   34,505.52 

(i) 	 Trade receivables					   

	 The Company applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime 
expected credit loss allowance (ECL) for all trade receivables.					  

	 The application of a simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.			 

	 To manage credit risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers and other 
counterparties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad 
debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. The Company doesn’t have 
significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or a group of counterparties as it has robust risk 
management, provision and write-off policy for debtors. Trade receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for 
any non-recoverability of the dues. 					   

	 Following provides exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and other receivables	       (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

 1 - 30 days  3,985.91  7,607.84 

 31 - 60 days  15.30  65.35 

 61-90 days  20.56  12.24 

 more than 90 days  588.75  303.88 

Total  4,610.52  7,989.31 

	 Movements in the impairment loss allowance is as follow;	       (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

 Opening balance  28.99  10.21 

 Addition during the period  57.16  18.78 

 Reversal during the period  -   

Total  86.15  28.99 

(ii)	 Other financial assets

	 Movements in the impairment loss allowance is as follow;	       (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

 Opening balance  19.05  19.05 

 Addition during the period - -

 Reversal during the period -  -   

Total 19.05 19.05

(B)	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity represents the ability of the Company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its financial obligations on 
time, both in normal and in stressed conditions, without having to liquidate assets or raise funds at unfavourable terms 
thus compromising its earnings and capital. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to generate 
sufficient cash flow at reasonable cost to meet expected and / or unexpected claims.			 
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	 The Company has a view of maintaining liquidity with minimal risks while making investments. The Company invests 
its surplus funds in short term liquid assets in bank deposits and liquid mutual funds. The Company monitors its cash 
and bank balances periodically in view of its short term obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

	 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial asset & liabilities;				  
(i)  As at March 31, 2025							       (` in lakhs)

 Particulars 
upto 6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 years more than 
3 years

Total

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents  812.95  -    -    -    812.95 

(b) Term deposits with banks  6,735.00  2,935.00  32.50  -    9,702.50 

(c) Trade receivables  4,013.39  116.14  394.84  -    4,524.37 

(d) Investments  -    -    -    -    -   

(e) Other financial assets  24,104.16  32.06  -    236.69  24,372.91 

Total  35,665.50  3,083.20  427.34  236.69  39,412.73 

Financial liabilities

(a) Trade payables  27,234.73  -    -    -    27,234.73 

(b) Other payables  127.22  -    -    -    127.22 

(c) Other financial liabilities  308.26  -    -    -    308.26 

Total  27,670.21  -    -    -    27,670.21 

	 (ii)  As at  March 31, 2024						      (` in lakhs)

 Particulars upto 6 
months

6-12 
months

1-3 years more than 
3 years

Total

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents  1,870.30  -    -    -    1,870.30 

(b) Term deposits with banks  8,789.50  810.00  125.00  -    9,724.50 

(c) Trade receivables  7,711.11  249.21  -    -    7,960.32 

(d) Investments  -    -    275.94  -    275.94 

(e) Other financial assets  26,310.07  17.10  1.03  217.00  26,545.20 

Total  44,680.98  1,076.31  401.97  217.00  46,376.26 

Financial liabilities

(a) Trade payables  35,053.14  -    -    -    35,053.14 

(b) Other payables  267.98  -    -    -    267.98 

(c) Other financial liabilities  376.68  36.29  8.49  -    421.46 

Total  35,697.80  36.29  8.49  -    35,742.58 

(C)	 Market risk					  

	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future Cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures 
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.					   

	 (i)	 Foreign currency risk					   

	 The Company does not have any foreign currency exposure as at each reporting date. Accordingly, foreign 
currency risk disclosure is not applicable.					   

	 (ii)	 Interest rate risk

	 The Company is expose to Interest risk if the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will 
fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair 
values of fixed interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rates.			
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	 The Company’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing deposits with bank and margin trading funding 
to customers. Such instruments exposes the Company to fair value interest rate risk. Management believe that 
the interest rate risk attached to this financial assets are not significant due to the nature of this financial assets. 
Further, the Company has borrowing limit aside with the bank, and interest rate are linked to deposits with 
them. Therefore there is no impact of movement in interest rate on that. All investments within the portfolio are 
approved by the appropriate authority.					   

	 The following table shows sensitivity analysis for impact of change in interest rate		  (` in lakhs)

 Particulars As at  March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Interest rate 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Interest rate 
exposure

Impact on 
income

 Increase in 1% in rate of interest  9,702.50  97.03  9,724.50  97.25 

 Decrease in 1% in rate of interest  9,702.50  (97.03)  9,724.50  (97.25)

(iii)	Market price risk					   

	 The Company is exposed to market price risk, which arises from FVTPL investment in the quoted shares and liquid 
mutual funds. The management monitors the proportion of mutual funds investments in its investment portfolio 
based on market indices. All investments within the portfolio are approved by the appropriate authority.

	 The following table shows sensitivity analysis for impact of change in market price		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Market price 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Market price 
exposure

Impact on 
income

Increase in 5% in market price  -    -    275.93  13.80 

Decrease in 5% in market price  -    -    275.93  (13.80)

Note 46 : Capital management						   

Risk management						    

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to						    

(a)	 safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(b)	 maintain an optimal capital structure to maximise the shareholder value.				  

The gearing ratio at the reporting date as follows-:					     (` in lakhs)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

 (a) Debt  -    -   

 (b) Cash and bank balances  10,515.45  11,594.80 

 (c) Net Debt (a-b)  (10,515.45)  (11,594.80)

 (d) Total equity  Capital  608.97  608.97 

 (e) Capital gearing ratio (c/d) -1727% -1904%

Note 47 : Other disclosure as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs

(A)	 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company

	 The Company does not hold or in control of any immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lesse) whose title deeds are not in favour of 
the Company. Other then note number 34					   
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(B)	 Transactions with specified persons	

	 The Company has not made any loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs 
and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013). either severally or jointly with any other person 
that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.	

(C)	 Disclosure on Benami Property held

	 No proceedings have been initiated against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act., 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(D)	 Disclosure on borrowings

	 No borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year.

(E)	 Disclosure on wilful defaulter					   

	 The company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(F)	 Relationship with Struck off Companies					   

	 The Company has not made any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 
2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(G)	Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies		 			 

	 No charges were created during the year and hence no satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies.

(H)	 Compliance with number of layers of companies

	 The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rule, 2017.

(I)	 Ratios

	 Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xvi) of Division III of Schedule III amendment, disclosure of 
ratios, is not applicable to the Company as it is in broking business and not an NBFC registered under Section 45-IA 
of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.					   

(J)	 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) to any other person or entity including foreign entities.

	 The Company has not received any funds from any person or entity including  foreign entities for the purpose 
mentioned in the said notification.					   

(K)	 Undisclosed income	

	 The Company has not received any funds from any person or entity including  foreign entities for the purpose 
mentioned in the said notification.

(L)	 Details of crypto currency or virtual currency					   

	 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.	

(M)	Subsequent events	

	 There were no significant events after the end of the reporting period that required any adjustment or disclosure in 
the financial statements.					   

Note 48 : Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors		  				  

Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited( Holding company of StockHolding Services Ltd)  is in receipt of communication 
from its Holding Company i.e M/s IFCI Ltd., informing that the Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance vide 
its letter F.N.2/22/2016-IF-1 dated November 22, 2024, has accorded in-principle approval to consider ‘Consolidation of 
IFCI Group’ which includes StockHolding Services Limited.					   

Notes forming part of the financial statements (contd.)
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Note 49 : Dividend

 Particulars For the 
financial year

Dividend per 
share (`)

No. of shares Total Dividend 
(` in lakhs)

Final dividend 

 - at Annual General Meeting held on 
September 15, 2024 

2023-24 15  60,89,703  913.46 

Interim dividend 

 - at Board Meeting held on 26 July , 2024 2024-25 4  60,89,703  243.59 

 - at Board Meeting held on 10 March , 2025 2024-25 4  60,89,703  243.59 

23  1,400.63 

The Board has recommended the final dividend of `10.5 per equity share for the financial year 2024-25 subject to the 
approval of the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The total dividend amount would be `639.42 lakhs.

Note 50 :

Figures for the corresponding previous Financial period have been regrouped and rearranged to confirm those of current  
financial year.						    

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of 	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors        
A BAFNA & CO  	 STOCKHOLDING SERVICES LIMITED
Chartered Accountants     
FRN: 003660C       	              

Vivek Gupta	 Prabhat Kumar Dubey    	 Sarala Menon		
Partner	 Managing Director 	 Director		
Membership No. 400543	 & Chief Executive Officer 	 DIN : 08499105 	
	 DIN : 09327875 		   

Place: Mumbai	 Reshma Chalke	 Poonam Chhikara	
Date: April 23, 2025	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary	
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On the occasion of the visit of Managing Director & CEO of IFCI, Shri Rahul Bhave at SHCIL House, Mahape, Shri. Atul 
Saxena, the MD & CEO of StockHolding Corporation of India Limited (SHCIL) and other senior employees welcomed him 
(standing from left to right) Shri Manoj Kumar Parida, Chief Operating Officer of SHCIL, Shri Rahul Bhave, MD & CEO of 
IFCI, Shri Atul Saxena, MD & CEO of SHCIL, Shri Prabhat Kumar Dubey, MD & CEO of SSL and Shri Sunder Kataria, MD 
& CEO of StockHolding Document Management Services Limited.

SSL Team on the occasion of Republic Day on January 26th 2025.
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Navratri celebrations, sharing in the warmth and joy of the festival.

Diwali celebrations at SHCIL House. 
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Shri Bidyut Chowdhury, Chief Business Officer and Shri Rajiv Somaiya, Assistant Manager from SSL Business Development 
team at the Regional Dealer’s Meet organised at SHCIL Kolkata Branch. 

Smt. Poornima Waikar, Manager: Business and Product Development and Shri Rajiv Somaiya, from SSL Business 
Development team at the Regional Dealer’s Meet organised at SHCIL Jaipur Branch.
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Under its CSR initiatives, SSL supported Kherwadi Social Welfare Association (KSWA) which is an NGO working with 
primary objective of catering to school drop outs and make them economically independent through livelihood training.

Under its CSR initiatives, SSL supported, SAMUDAIK KALYAN EVAM VIKAS SANSTHAN (SKVS) an NGO at Gorakhpur, 
UP. It is established with an objective of enhancing economic opportunities through skill development program, reducing 
poverty and discrimination and improve health, education and social services for women, girls, youth and children from 
the poor, needy and vulnerable group especially Dalit and other backward communities. 
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Under its CSR initiatives, along with support of HURT FOUNDATION, SHCIL Foundation Trust has been instrumental in 
the reopening of the Industrial Training Institute (ITI) Campus of the Children’s Aid Society Mumbai.



082  |  30th Annual Report 2024-25




